
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING PACKET 

JULY 28, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 
City Manager Mayor  
Darrell Boeske Merle Aaron 
Assistant City Manager Council Members  
Aimee Phillips Allan Steagall 
City Secretary Ray Calfee 
Jason Stuebe Andy Curry 
 Norman Funderburk 
 David Pierce  
     

Agenda 
Humble City Council 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, July 28, 2016 6:30 P.M.  

City Hall Council Chamber, 114 West Higgins 
Humble, Texas 

 
Call to order. 
 

1. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2. Consent agenda items which consist of ministerial or “housekeeping” items as required 
by law.  Items may be removed from the consent agenda and discussed by majority vote 
of the Council. 

 
a. Minutes – Regular Meeting Minutes June 23, 2016 
b. Financial Report 
c. Current Invoices 
d. Monthly Department Reports 
e. Correspondence 

 
3. Public Hearing: considering the renewal of the City of Humble Curfew for persons under 

the age of 17.   
 

4. Resolution 16-768 adopting a schedule of fees and charges applicable to regulatory 
inspections, permitting, applications, and other matters.   

 
5. Approval of a Development Plat of Main Event Humble, a subdivision of 6.3741 acres of 

land situated in the Wherry B. Adams Survey, Abstract No. 95, Harris County, Texas; 1 
block, 1 reserve.  
 

6. Approval of Replat #1 a Subdivision Plat and Development Plat of Intercontinental 
Commerce Park a subdivision of 10.322 acres of land situated in the W.B. Adams 
Survey, Abstract No. 95, Harris County, Texas; 1 block, 2 reserves.  

 



7. Approval of a Short Form Plat of SRG-Humble a subdivision of 0.582 acre of land 
situated in the Wherry B. Adams Survey, Abstract No. 95, Harris County, Texas; 1 block, 
2 lots.  

 
8. Approval of Engineer’s Proposal to replace the Rankin Road roadside ditch outfalls; 

conversion Civic Center detention pond to a wet bottom pond; repair of the Southwest 
Wastewater Treatment Plant detention pond.    

 
Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Humble, Texas 
will be held on Thursday, July 28, 2016 at 6:30 P.M. at the City Hall Council Chamber, 114 
West Higgins, Humble, Texas.  The following subjects will be discussed, to wit: See Agenda. 
 
Posted this 25th day of July, 2016 at 5:00 P.M. 
 
 
      
City Secretary 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing Body of 
the City of Humble, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and that I posted a true and 
correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 114 West Higgins, Humble, Texas 
and the City’s website, www.cityofhumble.com.  The Agenda and Notice are readily accessible 
to the general public at all times.  Said Notice and Agenda were posted on July 25, 2016 at 5:00 
P.M. and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled time of 
said meeting. 
 
This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the Humble City Hall on the 
following date and time:       by                   
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the  , day of    , 2016. 
 
      
Notary Public – Harris County, Texas  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.cityofhumble.com/


 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-28-2016 

 

AGENDA ITEM #2A 

 

JUNE 23, 2016 MINUTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes 06-23-2016 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

JUNE 23, 2016 – 6:30 P.M. 
 

HELD AT CITY HALL, 114 WEST HIGGINS, HUMBLE, TEXAS 
 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
   § 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Merle Aaron, Presiding 
    Mayor Pro Tem Norman Funderburk 
    Council Member Ray Calfee 
    Council Member Andy Curry 
    Council Member Allan Steagall 
    Council Member David Pierce 
    City Manager Darrell Boeske     
    City Secretary Jason Stuebe 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Finance Director Aimee Phillips 
    Fire Chief Gary Outlaw 
    Police Chief Delbert Dawes 
    Public Works Director Barry Brock 
    Human Resources Manager Kathy Babineaux 
    Captain Ken Theis 
    Assistant Fire Chief Mike Legoudes 
    Fire Marshall James Nykaza 
             
VISITORS PRESENT:  Linda Aaron    Jennifer Summer 
    Juanita Steagall    Lloyd Jernigan 
    Diane Pierce    Louis Valencia 
    Naomi Curry    Janna Hoglund 
    Lt. Col. Jeff McCartney   Lindsay Stuebe 
    Captain Jose Real   Caden Stuebe 
    Members of the U.S. Army  Jeff Pena 
    Recruits of the U.S. Army  Dutch Phillips 
    Arliss Bentley    Deborah Phillips 
    Bob Phillips    Rebekka Hanle 
    Sean Schwery    Cindy Schwery 
              
Mayor Aaron called the regular meeting of the Humble City Council to order with a quorum present at 
6:30 P.M.   
 

 



Minutes 06-23-2016 

1. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
Council Member Funderburk offered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA 
2A. MINUTES – MEETING MINUTES JUNE 9, 2016 
2B. CURRENT INVOICES 
2D. MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
2E. CORRESPONDENCE 

 
Upon a motion by Council Member Funderburk, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) 
opposed to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 

3. PRESENATION ESTABLISH A COMMUNITY COVENANT BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES ARMY AND 
CITY OF HUMBLE. 
 
Mayor Aaron welcomed members of the United States Army and introduced Captain Jose Real of 
the Houston Recruiting Command.  Capt. Real thanked the city for joining the Army to sign a 
Community Covenant which seeks to formalize support and improve the quality of lives for soldiers 
in our community and strengthen the community’s relationship with the Army.  Capt. Real then 
invited Lt. Col. Jeff McCartney to say a few words.  Lt. Col. McCartney thanked all veterans in 
attendance for their service and invited the City Council to sign the Community Covenant.   
 
Following the signing ceremony, Capt. Real administered the Oath of Enlistment to several incoming 
Army Recruits.   
 
Mayor Aaron thanked all for their service to their country and wanted to ensure that Capt. Real and 
the Houston Recruiting Command keep in contact with the City.   
 

4. EXECUTIVE SESSION HELD IN THE CITY COUNCIL CONFERENCE ROOM; LEGAL ADVICE {GOV’T CODE 
SECTION 551.071} AND DELIBERATION OF PERSONNEL MATTERS {GOV’T CODE SECTION 551.074}; 
POSSIBLE ACTION 
 
The City Council recessed the regular meeting to convene in Executive Session at 6:44 P.M. on 
Thursday, June 23, 2016. 
 
The City Council reconvened the regular meeting at 7:35 P.M., no action was taken.  
 

5. APPOINTMENT AND APPROVAL OF ASSISTANT CITY MANAGERS. 
 

City Manager Boeske asked for approval of Aimee Phillips and Jason Stuebe to be named Assistant 
City Managers.   
 
Upon a motion by Mayor Aaron, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) opposed to approve 
the appointment of Ms. Phillips and Mr. Stuebe as Assistant City Managers.   
 

6. RESOLUTION 16-766 CREATING SECTION 4.22 “SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY” OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE 
PERSONNEL POLICIES. 

 



Minutes 06-23-2016 

City Manager Boeske asked for approval of the policy. 
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Curry, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) opposed to 
approve Resolution 16-766 creating Section 4.22 of the Personnel Policies.   
 

7. RESOLUTION 16-767 AMENDING SECTION 6.08 “LEAVE OFR ABSENCE – PERSONAL BUSINESS 
LEAVE OR EXTENDED LEAVES DUE TO PENDING INVESTIGATION” OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE 
PERSONNEL POLICIES.   
 
City Manager Boeske asked for approval of the policy amendment. 
 
Mayor Aaron noted that the city has identified several housekeeping measures that need to be 
addressed within the personnel policies and that the city will continue to update and improve them.   
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Funderburk, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) 
opposed to approve Resolution 16-767 amending Section 6.08 of the Personnel Policies.  
 

8. APPROVAL OF THE TOWNSEN BOULEVARD STREET DEDICATION NO. 1 PLAT BEING A SUBDIVISION 
OF 15.256 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN THE T.F. PINKNEY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 1588, CITY OF 
HUMBLE, HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS; 0 LOTS, 2 BLOCKS, 4 RESERVES.   

 
City Manager Boeske asked for conditional approval of the plat.   
 
Mayor Aaron stated that the city had some conditions that will be addressed by city staff and 
representatives from the developers prior to final approval and recordation.   
 
City Manager Boeske stated that while the roadway meets our drainage requirements, the City 
requests that the developer takes every measure they can to ensure that the impact on flood 
threats is mitigated.   
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Steagall, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) opposed 
to conditionally approve the Development Plat for the Townsen Boulevard Street Dedication No. 1 
Plat.   

 
There being no further business before the City Council, Mayor Aaron adjourned the Regular Meeting of 
the City Council at 7:40 P.M. on Thursday, June 23, 2016   

 
    
             

       Merle Aaron 
       Mayor 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
       
 Jason Stuebe 
 City Secretary 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-28-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #2B 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Humble
Balance on Deposit, All Funds
For the Month of June 2016

General Fund:

Fiscal YTD 
Earnings

Balance as of 
06/30/2016

Cash 392.03$            4,083,507.31$         
Certificate of Deposit
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 70,008.38         7,785,990.69           
Cash - METRO 714.63              10,541,423.20         
CDs - METRO
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs - METRO 45,290.11         6,038,284.33           

Total 116,405.15       28,449,205.53         

Water & Sewer Operating Fund:
Cash -                    8,952,281.34           
Certificate of Deposit
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 26,010.76         2,531,097.33           

Total 26,010.76         11,483,378.67         

Photo Traffic Safety Fund:
Cash 148.57              2,628,509.59           
Brokerage CDs 2,016.44           501,172.00              

Total 2,165.01           3,129,681.59           

Hotel Tax Fund:
Cash -                    1,000,720.27           

Total -                    1,000,720.27           

Capital Projects Fund:
TexStar- Water Well Construction 8.48                  4,164.59                  
Brokerage CDs- Water Well Construction 578.41              -                           

Total 586.89              4,164.59                  

Sewer Plant Construction Fund:
Cash -                    598,480.41              
Brokerage CDs 525.21              -                           

Total 525.21              598,480.41              

Total All Funds:
Cash 1,255.23           27,804,922.12         
TexStar 8.48                  4,164.59                  
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 144,429.31       16,856,544.35         
Total 145,693.02$    44,665,631.06$       



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-28-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #2C 

 

CURRENT INVOICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECKS

Water & Sewer Special Red Light Beautification Special 

Date General Fund Operating Fund Revenue Camera Projects TOTAL

6/23/2016 1,109.37 1,109.37$             
6/30/2016 2,922.78                2,922.78$                 
7/1/2016 269,459.45              145,411.07                   321.04                   52,570.42           467,761.98$             

7/15/2016 256,083.06              41,679.94                     726.50                   305.88                 350.00                 12,122.45               311,267.83$             
7/18/2016 699.18$                   699.18$                    

527,351.06$           187,091.01$                3,970.32$             52,876.30$         350.00$              12,122.45$             783,761.14$             

APRIL PURCHASE CARDS

103,872.64$       48,355.00$                 183.63$               3,277.29$        4.32$                 155,692.88$           





















Alexander, Joe 4/11/2016 4/12/2016 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 19.08

Allen, Vince 4/12/2016 4/14/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 61.17

Babineaux, Kathy 4/22/2016 4/25/2016 Dollar-General #1906Humble, TX 2

Babineaux, Kathy 4/22/2016 4/25/2016 Big Lots Stores - #419Humble, TX 3

Babineaux, Kathy 4/22/2016 4/25/2016 Samsclub #6367 Humble, TX 77.97

Babineaux, Kathy 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 12

Babineaux, Kathy 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

101.47

Baucom, Billy 4/19/2016 4/21/2016 M D N  Enterprises New Caney, TX 1576.9

Berry, Michael 4/15/2016 4/18/2016 Lennys Sub Shop 281Humble, TX 89.8

Blake, Scott 4/9/2016 4/11/2016 Best Buy      00002550Humble, TX 279.96

Boeske, W 4/18/2016 4/19/2016 Mister Car Wash #9 QpsHumble, TX 32.99

Boeske, W 4/12/2016 4/14/2016 Cavatore Italian RestaHouston, TX 46.86

79.85

Bradshaw, Melinda 4/27/2016 4/28/2016 Academy Sports #21 Humble, TX 74.99

Brown, Damian 4/27/2016 4/28/2016 Lonestar Veterinary HoHumble, TX 127.43

Brown, Damian 4/5/2016 4/7/2016 Raceway 6765  02067650Humble, TX 20.8

Brown, Damian 4/4/2016 4/7/2016 Raceway 6765  02067650Humble, TX 26.53

Brown, Damian 4/4/2016 4/7/2016 Raceway 6765  02067650Humble, TX 26

200.76

Burt, Jack 4/21/2016 4/25/2016 Stalker Radar 09723983750, TX 2422.92

Campbell, Jason 4/20/2016 4/20/2016 Dx Service 281-457-4825, TX 880.59

Campbell, Jason 4/6/2016 4/7/2016 Tceq Ind Renewal L Austin, TX 111

991.59

Cantu, Stephen 4/26/2016 4/28/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 16.31

Cantu, Stephen 4/21/2016 4/25/2016 Ferrara Fire ApparatusHolden, LA 560.28

Cantu, Stephen 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 21.98

Cantu, Stephen 4/5/2016 4/7/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 8.88

607.45

Chambers, Vera 4/28/2016 4/29/2016 Minuteman Press Humble, TX 169

Chambers, Vera 4/23/2016 4/25/2016 Comcast Of Houston 713-341-1000, TX 17.57

Chambers, Vera 4/12/2016 4/14/2016 Publicdata.Com 800-839-7245, TX 85

271.57

Coombs, Clint 4/22/2016 4/25/2016 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 21

Coombs, Clint 4/21/2016 4/22/2016 Tractor-Supply-Co #040Porter, TX 31.98

Coombs, Clint 4/20/2016 4/22/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 39.71

Coombs, Clint 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 Iws Gas And Supply Of281-540-5500, TX 34.75

Coombs, Clint 4/7/2016 4/8/2016 Tractor-Supply-Co #040Porter, TX 15.96

Coombs, Clint 4/7/2016 4/11/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 18.88

Coombs, Clint 4/1/2016 4/4/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 42.81

205.09

Corrales, Sergio 4/4/2016 4/5/2016 Usps 48419003331404999Humble, TX 3.94

Cuellar, Angel 4/21/2016 4/22/2016 Ppg Paints 9613 Humble, TX 90.21

Cuellar, Angel 4/14/2016 4/15/2016 Ferguson Ent #2725 281-446-3869, TX 18.65

Cuellar, Angel 4/13/2016 4/14/2016 A J'S Small Engine RepHumble, TX 63.84

172.7

Culp, Joseph 4/27/2016 4/28/2016 Paypal  Texasdivisi 9365383417, CA 205.9

Culp, Joseph 4/20/2016 4/21/2016 B&H Photo, 800-606-69800-2215743, NY 341.66



Culp, Joseph 4/1/2016 4/4/2016 Best Buy      00002550Humble, TX 49.99

597.55

Davis, Ray 4/19/2016 4/21/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX -99.84

Davis, Ray 4/12/2016 4/14/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 114.78

Davis, Ray 3/30/2016 4/1/2016 M D N  Enterprises New Caney, TX 116.2

131.14

Elliott, Sandra 4/4/2016 4/6/2016 Lexisnexis Risk Dat 08883328244, FL 107.5

Elliott, Sandra 4/1/2016 4/4/2016 Ds Services Standard CAtlanta, GA 52.26

159.76

Falcon, Danny 4/15/2016 4/18/2016 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 275.98

Falcon, Danny 4/12/2016 4/13/2016 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 339.97

Falcon, Danny 4/5/2016 4/6/2016 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 163.97

779.92

Fillmore, Steve 4/27/2016 4/29/2016 Texan Truck AccessorieKingwood, TX 850

Fillmore, Steve 4/26/2016 4/28/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 215.88

Fillmore, Steve 4/26/2016 4/28/2016 Texan Truck AccessorieKingwood, TX 350

Fillmore, Steve 4/5/2016 4/7/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 9.85

Fillmore, Steve 4/4/2016 4/5/2016 Besco Electric SupplyHouston, TX 136

Fillmore, Steve 4/4/2016 4/6/2016 Napa Store 4078105 Kingwood, TX 114

Fillmore, Steve 3/30/2016 4/1/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 32.45

Fillmore, Steve 3/30/2016 4/1/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 31.84

1740.02

Fleming, William 4/28/2016 4/28/2016 Galls 08592667227, KY 79

Fleming, William 4/27/2016 4/28/2016 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 45.97

Fleming, William 4/27/2016 4/28/2016 Northwest River Suppli02088830811, ID 599.25

Fleming, William 4/26/2016 4/27/2016 Colorado Kayak 7193952422, CO 435

Fleming, William 4/26/2016 4/27/2016 Rear View Safety 8007641028, NY 1238.48

Fleming, William 4/26/2016 4/27/2016 Academy Sports #21 Humble, TX 37.35

Fleming, William 4/25/2016 4/26/2016 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 167.27

Fleming, William 4/25/2016 4/27/2016 Small Engine Supply Humble, TX 68.93

Fleming, William 4/21/2016 4/22/2016 American Screen GraphiKingwood, TX 300

Fleming, William 4/21/2016 4/25/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 44.94

Fleming, William 4/20/2016 4/22/2016 Chick-Fil-A #02415 Humble, TX 53.4

Fleming, William 4/12/2016 4/13/2016 Wal-Mart #1837 Humble, TX 11.86

Fleming, William 4/12/2016 4/14/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 9.72

3091.17

Flores, Teodulo 4/26/2016 4/28/2016 M D N  Enterprises New Caney, TX 964.96

Flores, Teodulo 3/31/2016 4/4/2016 M D N  Enterprises New Caney, TX 401

1365.96

Forbes, Steve 4/28/2016 4/29/2016 Walgreens #0496 Humble, TX 35.91

Forbes, Steve 4/12/2016 4/13/2016 Humble Camera CenterHumble, TX 79.95

Forbes, Steve 4/9/2016 4/11/2016 Academy Sports #21 Humble, TX 65.97

Forbes, Steve 4/5/2016 4/5/2016 Galls 08592667227, KY 430.93

Forbes, Steve 4/4/2016 4/5/2016 Lonestarproducts 8666707951, TX 124.2

Forbes, Steve 4/4/2016 4/5/2016 Mister Car Wash #9 QpsHumble, TX 7

743.96

Franks, Joe 4/27/2016 4/29/2016 Motorola, Inc. - Onlin 800-814-0601, IL 321.75

Franks, Joe 4/14/2016 4/15/2016 Lind Electronics Minneapolis, MN 138.95

Franks, Joe 4/14/2016 4/15/2016 Minuteman Press Humble, TX 234

Franks, Joe 4/13/2016 4/14/2016 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 13.93

Franks, Joe 4/10/2016 4/11/2016 Kroger #190 Humble, TX 71.9

780.53

Ganyo, Mark 4/25/2016 4/26/2016 Arrow International 919-5448000, NC 1759.71

Ganyo, Mark 4/22/2016 4/25/2016 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel8002827904, OH 2123.77

Ganyo, Mark 4/5/2016 4/8/2016 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel8002827904, OH 188.99



Ganyo, Mark 4/4/2016 4/6/2016 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel8002827904, OH 790.44

Ganyo, Mark 4/4/2016 4/11/2016 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel8002827904, OH 386

5248.91

Gill, Patricia 4/15/2016 4/20/2016 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 112.92

Green, Christine 4/21/2016 4/22/2016 Kroger #190 Humble, TX 44.59

Green, Christine 4/16/2016 4/18/2016 Humble Fairfield Inn AHumble, TX 100

Green, Christine 4/15/2016 4/18/2016 Wal-Mart #1837 Humble, TX 4.32

Green, Christine 4/14/2016 4/18/2016 Texas Council On FamilAustin, TX 35

183.91

Grimes, Charlie 4/7/2016 4/11/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 22.34

Grimes, Charlie 4/5/2016 4/6/2016 Moore Supply CompanyHumble, TX 108.28

Grimes, Charlie 4/5/2016 4/7/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 48.62

Grimes, Charlie 3/31/2016 4/1/2016 Moore Supply CompanyHumble, TX 42.74

Grimes, Charlie 3/31/2016 4/1/2016 Moore Supply CompanyHumble, TX 29.75

Grimes, Charlie 3/31/2016 4/4/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 76

327.73

Guevara, Mari 4/27/2016 4/29/2016 Hobby-Lobby #0160 Humble, TX 212.26

Guevara, Mari 4/27/2016 4/28/2016 Wm Supercenter #1837Humble, TX 173.99

Guevara, Mari 4/26/2016 4/27/2016 Dolrtree 572  00005728Humble, TX 71.53

Guevara, Mari 4/26/2016 4/28/2016 Party City 0175 Humble, TX 230.76

Guevara, Mari 4/22/2016 4/26/2016 Minuteman Press Humble, TX 60.34

Guevara, Mari 4/5/2016 4/7/2016 Party City 0175 Humble, TX 42.16

Guevara, Mari 4/4/2016 4/5/2016 Wal-Mart #1837 Humble, TX 50

Guevara, Mari 4/4/2016 4/5/2016 Wal-Mart #1837 Humble, TX 9.97

Guevara, Mari 3/31/2016 4/1/2016 Target        00014571Humble, TX 33.35

Guevara, Mari 3/31/2016 4/4/2016 Dolrtree 572  00005728Humble, TX 27

Guevara, Mari 3/30/2016 4/1/2016 Hobby-Lobby #0160 Humble, TX 68.84

980.2

Guidry Jr, Kent 4/5/2016 4/8/2016 Shell Oil 57543432801Humble, TX 21.84

Gunn, Kevin 4/22/2016 4/25/2016 Ppg Paints 9613 Humble, TX 69.92

Gunn, Shane 3/31/2016 4/1/2016 Alco Trailers Etc Inc Humble, TX 72

Hammock, James 4/5/2016 4/8/2016 Shell Oil 57543432801Humble, TX 46.43

Hawkins, Fred 4/26/2016 4/28/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 29.43

Hawkins, Fred 4/26/2016 4/28/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 4.77

Hawkins, Fred 4/21/2016 4/25/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 4.98

Hawkins, Fred 4/14/2016 4/18/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 12.97

Hawkins, Fred 4/14/2016 4/18/2016 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 9.95

Hawkins, Fred 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 16.77

Hawkins, Fred 4/7/2016 4/11/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 199

Hawkins, Fred 4/7/2016 4/11/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 40.15

Hawkins, Fred 4/7/2016 4/11/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX -199

Hawkins, Fred 4/7/2016 4/11/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 159

Hawkins, Fred 4/4/2016 4/6/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 61.92

Hawkins, Fred 4/4/2016 4/6/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 27.21

367.15

Hogan, Betty 4/27/2016 4/28/2016 Five Below 1146 Humble, TX 181.9

Hosler, Thomas 4/25/2016 4/26/2016 Jaguar Fueling Service08445243835, TX 155.25

Hosler, Thomas 4/25/2016 4/26/2016 Lowes #00750 Kingwood, TX 313.5

Hosler, Thomas 4/22/2016 4/25/2016 Texan Truck AccessorieKingwood, TX 459.95

Hosler, Thomas 4/19/2016 4/21/2016 Bio Aquatic Testing Carrollton, TX 1800

Hosler, Thomas 4/15/2016 4/18/2016 Sq  James@SipesinstrumForney, TX 6650

Hosler, Thomas 4/14/2016 4/18/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 389

Hosler, Thomas 4/13/2016 4/14/2016 Alfa Laval 08042363115, VA 2288.3



Hosler, Thomas 4/13/2016 4/15/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 63.96

Hosler, Thomas 4/11/2016 4/12/2016 Officemax/Officedepot6Humble, TX 126.61

Hosler, Thomas 4/11/2016 4/12/2016 Sq  James@SipesinstrumFort Worth, TX 750

Hosler, Thomas 4/7/2016 4/8/2016 Nes Rentals 99 Humble, TX 578.2

Hosler, Thomas 4/6/2016 4/7/2016 Concrete Contractors SConroe, TX 2685.14

Hosler, Thomas 4/1/2016 4/4/2016 Concrete Contractors SConroe, TX 108.41

16368.32

Hottman, Adam 4/16/2016 4/18/2016 Kroger #190 Humble, TX 64.89

Hottman, Adam 4/14/2016 4/18/2016 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel8002827904, OH 49

Hottman, Adam 4/14/2016 4/18/2016 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel8002827904, OH 63.16

Hottman, Adam 4/13/2016 4/18/2016 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel8002827904, OH 726.34

Hottman, Adam 4/13/2016 4/18/2016 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel8002827904, OH 1453.87

Hottman, Adam 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel8002827904, OH 74.9

Hottman, Adam 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel8002827904, OH 74.9

Hottman, Adam 3/31/2016 4/4/2016 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel8002827904, OH 963.84

Hottman, Adam 3/30/2016 4/1/2016 Emergency Medical ProdTel8005586270, OH 7.25

3478.15

Hudson, Jr., Thomas 4/6/2016 4/8/2016 Shell Oil 57543432801Humble, TX 29.31

Johnson Iii, Louis 4/26/2016 4/29/2016 Hach Company Loveland, CO 147.23

Johnson Iii, Louis 4/25/2016 4/28/2016 Hach Company Loveland, CO 844.06

Johnson Iii, Louis 4/19/2016 4/20/2016 Officemax/Officedepot6Humble, TX 112.91

Johnson Iii, Louis 4/14/2016 4/18/2016 Hach Company Loveland, CO 192.79

Johnson Iii, Louis 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 17.01

Johnson Iii, Louis 4/5/2016 4/6/2016 Best Buy      00002550Humble, TX 309.97

Johnson Iii, Louis 4/1/2016 4/4/2016 Usa Blue Book 08004939876, IL 1602.89

3226.86

Kellar, Chancey 4/27/2016 4/28/2016 Port City Fasteners LlHumble, TX 132.6

Kellar, Chancey 4/19/2016 4/21/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 31.94

Kellar, Chancey 4/4/2016 4/6/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 39.94

Kellar, Chancey 4/1/2016 4/4/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 31.88

236.36

Killian, Elanna 4/28/2016 4/29/2016 Auto Renewal Stick Austin, TX 2

Killian, Elanna 4/28/2016 4/29/2016 Harris Cnty Vehreg Houston, TX 15.25

Killian, Elanna 4/27/2016 4/29/2016 Jimmy Johns - 1822 - MHumble, TX 70.16

Killian, Elanna 4/26/2016 4/28/2016 Party City Humble, TX 25.6

Killian, Elanna 4/26/2016 4/27/2016 Nothing Bundt Cakes 53Humble, TX 39.5

Killian, Elanna 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 James Coney Island - 3Humble, TX 134.9

Killian, Elanna 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 99 Cents Only #2881 Humble, TX 9

Killian, Elanna 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 Epl Texas Monthly 800-759-2000, IA 46

342.41

Killion, Ryan 4/25/2016 4/26/2016 Hayes Truck Group 281-405-0950, TX 4907.03

Killion, Ryan 4/13/2016 4/14/2016 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 14.64

Killion, Ryan 4/12/2016 4/13/2016 Mister Car Wash #9 QpsHumble, TX 33.99

Killion, Ryan 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 Clicks Tire Service In02813545269, TX 95

Killion, Ryan 4/7/2016 4/8/2016 Triples Steel Holdin Houston, TX 15.95

5066.61

Knight, Mark 4/4/2016 4/5/2016 Tceq Ind Renewal L Austin, TX 111

Lee, Daniel 4/5/2016 4/6/2016 Cg Police Supply Houston, TX 518.87

Lee, Daniel 4/5/2016 4/5/2016 Precision Delta Corp 06627562810, MS 898

1416.87

Legoudes, Melissa 4/27/2016 4/28/2016 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 190.47

Legoudes, Melissa 4/27/2016 4/28/2016 Rosewood Flower ShopHumble, TX 93.5

Legoudes, Melissa 4/22/2016 4/25/2016 Hallmark Office ProducHouston, TX 472.51

Legoudes, Melissa 4/22/2016 4/25/2016 Hallmark Office ProducHouston, TX 1777.76

Legoudes, Melissa 4/21/2016 4/22/2016 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 88.02



Legoudes, Melissa 4/21/2016 4/22/2016 Deerwood A/C & HeatingHumble, TX 329

Legoudes, Melissa 4/19/2016 4/21/2016 Vievu Seattle, WA 544

Legoudes, Melissa 4/19/2016 4/20/2016 Sq  Epoxy Floors Of Houston, TX 2600

Legoudes, Melissa 4/19/2016 4/21/2016 Shipley Donuts     QpsHumble, TX 7.99

Legoudes, Melissa 4/15/2016 4/18/2016 Rosewood Flower ShopHumble, TX 55

Legoudes, Melissa 4/14/2016 4/15/2016 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 844.32

Legoudes, Melissa 4/12/2016 4/13/2016 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 24.95

Legoudes, Melissa 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 71.02

Legoudes, Melissa 4/6/2016 4/7/2016 Deerwood A/C & HeatingHumble, TX 496

Legoudes, Melissa 4/6/2016 4/8/2016 Law Enforcement TargetLinda@Letarge, MN 93.41

Legoudes, Melissa 4/5/2016 4/6/2016 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 47.52

Legoudes, Melissa 4/5/2016 4/6/2016 Thyssenkruppelevator W07707990400, GA 2352.18

Legoudes, Melissa 4/5/2016 4/6/2016 Adt Security 202241909800-238-2455, FL 139.47

Legoudes, Melissa 4/4/2016 4/6/2016 Lexisnexis Risk Dat 08883328244, FL 358.2

10585.32

Legoudes, Michael 4/28/2016 4/29/2016 Wm Supercenter #1837Humble, TX 39.21

Legoudes, Michael 4/27/2016 4/28/2016 Stericycle 08667837422, IL 75.37

Legoudes, Michael 4/26/2016 4/27/2016 Frazer Ltd Houston, TX 304.18

Legoudes, Michael 4/26/2016 4/27/2016 Financial Forms-Asb Des Moines, IA 189.69

Legoudes, Michael 4/20/2016 4/21/2016 Frazer Ltd Houston, TX 46.74

Legoudes, Michael 4/19/2016 4/21/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 165.08

Legoudes, Michael 4/18/2016 4/20/2016 Beasley Tire Srvc-KingKingwood, TX 141.97

Legoudes, Michael 4/12/2016 4/12/2016 Galls 08592667227, KY 29.99

Legoudes, Michael 4/12/2016 4/14/2016 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 23.5

Legoudes, Michael 4/12/2016 4/14/2016 Apco International Inc386-944-2422, FL 92

Legoudes, Michael 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 68.58

Legoudes, Michael 4/7/2016 4/11/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX -159

Legoudes, Michael 4/7/2016 4/11/2016 Young S One Stop Humble, TX 165

Legoudes, Michael 3/31/2016 4/1/2016 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 103.99

1286.3

Lewis, Morgan 4/4/2016 4/7/2016 Allivet Hialeah, FL 49.48

Lewis, Morgan 4/4/2016 4/5/2016 Vvs Val Vet/Direct Pet800-468-0059, KS 122.25

171.73

Lightyear, Arik 4/15/2016 4/18/2016 Kroger #190 Humble, TX 56.42

Love, Kenneth 4/25/2016 4/26/2016 Lonestarproducts 8666707951, TX 312.5

Love, Kenneth 4/23/2016 4/25/2016 Galls 08592667227, KY 300

Love, Kenneth 4/23/2016 4/25/2016 Galls 08592667227, KY 365.85

Love, Kenneth 4/22/2016 4/25/2016 Red The Uniform TailorLakewood, NJ 270

Love, Kenneth 4/20/2016 4/22/2016 Public Safety Center Visalia, CA 2166.6

Love, Kenneth 4/15/2016 4/18/2016 Galls Hq 08592667227, KY 695

Love, Kenneth 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 Red The Uniform TailorLakewood, NJ 182.5

Love, Kenneth 4/5/2016 4/6/2016 Ecopusa.Com Niceville, FL 293.73

Love, Kenneth 4/4/2016 4/5/2016 Red The Uniform TailorLakewood, NJ 194.05

4780.23

Martin, Gregory 4/5/2016 4/8/2016 Shell Oil 57543432801Humble, TX 25.54

Martin, Mark 4/25/2016 4/26/2016 Buckeye Intrnatnl Hq A03142911900, MO 159.75

Martin, Mark 4/12/2016 4/14/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 47.76

Martin, Mark 3/30/2016 4/1/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 23.52

Martin, Mark 3/30/2016 4/1/2016 Sign Mart Of Humble Humble, TX 75

306.03

Martinez, Fidel 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 7.97

Martinez, Fidel 4/6/2016 4/7/2016 Mister Car Wash #9 QpsHumble, TX 10

Martinez, Fidel 4/4/2016 4/6/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 11.5

Martinez, Fidel 3/31/2016 4/1/2016 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 133.98

163.45

Martinez, Joe 4/27/2016 4/28/2016 Texas Narcotic Officer09156290055, TX 300



Martinez, Joe 4/26/2016 4/27/2016 Enterprise Rent-A-CarHouston, TX 675

Martinez, Joe 4/5/2016 4/7/2016 High Speed Gear Swansboro, NC 93.44

1068.44

Maxwell, James 4/21/2016 4/22/2016 Fort Bend Services Inc281-261-5199, TX 1473

Maxwell, James 4/6/2016 4/7/2016 Fort Bend Services Inc281-261-5199, TX 1473

2946

May, Brian 4/11/2016 4/13/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 27.91

Mccaa, George 4/26/2016 4/28/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 14.87

Mccaa, George 4/21/2016 4/25/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 99.96

Mccaa, George 4/20/2016 4/22/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 18.56

Mccaa, George 4/20/2016 4/22/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 29.98

Mccaa, George 4/19/2016 4/21/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 11.99

Mccaa, George 4/15/2016 4/18/2016 Lowes #00750 Kingwood, TX 19.16

Mccaa, George 4/15/2016 4/18/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 24.35

Mccaa, George 4/14/2016 4/18/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 56.56

Mccaa, George 4/14/2016 4/18/2016 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 12.95

Mccaa, George 4/12/2016 4/14/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 31.88

Mccaa, George 4/6/2016 4/8/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 104

Mccaa, George 4/5/2016 4/6/2016 Century A/C Supply 02819333991, TX 31.85

Mccaa, George 4/1/2016 4/4/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 15.88

Mccaa, George 3/31/2016 4/4/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 10.99

482.98

Mcdowell, Sean 3/31/2016 4/4/2016 Chick-Fil-A #03258 Kingwood, TX 51.04

Michaud, Paula 4/22/2016 4/22/2016 Comcast Houston Cs 1x800-266-2278, TX 104.25

Michaud, Paula 4/21/2016 4/22/2016 Republic Services Tras08665765548, AZ 1876.32

Michaud, Paula 4/21/2016 4/22/2016 Republic Services Tras08665765548, AZ 577.4

Michaud, Paula 4/21/2016 4/25/2016 Vzwrlss My Vz Vb P Alpharetta, GA 7468.71

Michaud, Paula 4/18/2016 4/19/2016 Waste Mgmt Wm Ezpay08668342080, TX 11827.5

Michaud, Paula 4/18/2016 4/19/2016 Centurylink 800-201-4099, LA 6398.41

Michaud, Paula 4/16/2016 4/18/2016 Comcast Houston Cs 1x800-266-2278, TX 312.63

Michaud, Paula 4/15/2016 4/18/2016 Republic Services Tras08665765548, AZ 77.3

Michaud, Paula 4/15/2016 4/18/2016 Republic Services Tras08665765548, AZ 770.42

Michaud, Paula 4/15/2016 4/18/2016 Republic Services Tras08665765548, AZ 144.76

Michaud, Paula 4/15/2016 4/18/2016 Republic Services Tras08665765548, AZ 423.51

Michaud, Paula 4/13/2016 4/13/2016 Vzwrlss My Vz Vb P 800-922-0204, GA 7513.8

Michaud, Paula 4/9/2016 4/11/2016 Comcast Houston Cs 1x800-266-2278, TX 94.47

Michaud, Paula 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 Republic Services Tras08665765548, AZ 49.09

Michaud, Paula 4/7/2016 4/7/2016 Comcast Houston Cs 1x800-266-2278, TX 150.64

Michaud, Paula 4/7/2016 4/7/2016 Comcast Houston Cs 1x800-266-2278, TX 125.51

Michaud, Paula 4/4/2016 4/5/2016 Republic Services Tras08665765548, AZ 2501.76

Michaud, Paula 4/2/2016 4/4/2016 Comcast Houston Cs 1x800-266-2278, TX 199.44

40615.92

Mittag, Jeremy 4/21/2016 4/22/2016 Am Leonard 937-773-2694, OH 272.29

Mittag, Jeremy 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 Jwj Totally Tomatoes800-345-5977, GA 23.9

Mittag, Jeremy 4/4/2016 4/5/2016 Fox Family Pools Humble, TX 407.65

703.84

Moore, Sharon 4/27/2016 4/29/2016 Spiral Binding Company09732560666, NJ 50

Moore, Sharon 4/27/2016 4/29/2016 Spiral Binding Company09732560666, NJ 2081.81

Moore, Sharon 4/11/2016 4/12/2016 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 251.69

Moore, Sharon 4/6/2016 4/7/2016 Ds Services Standard C800-4928377, GA 17.1

2400.6

Moreno, Edis 4/26/2016 4/28/2016 Sign Mart Of Humble Humble, TX 900

Moreno, Edis 4/21/2016 4/25/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 73.13

Moreno, Edis 4/7/2016 4/11/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 29.55

Moreno, Edis 4/5/2016 4/8/2016 Shell Oil 57543419402Humble, TX 19.02

Moreno, Edis 4/2/2016 4/4/2016 Iws Gas And Supply Of281-540-5500, TX 10.53



Moreno, Edis 4/1/2016 4/4/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 81.62

1113.85

Morgan, Cindy 4/22/2016 4/25/2016 Tce Hrdirect/Gneil 800-888-4040, FL 169.42

Nansel, Michael 4/14/2016 4/15/2016 Dillard'S 780 DeerbrooHumble, TX 64.41

Nansel, Michael 4/6/2016 4/7/2016 Chevron 0155226 Humble, TX 41.26

Nansel, Michael 4/6/2016 4/7/2016 Chevron 0155226 Humble, TX 34.12

139.79

Naquin, Leroy 4/21/2016 4/25/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 21.97

Naquin, Leroy 4/19/2016 4/20/2016 Moore Supply CompanyHumble, TX 27.42

Naquin, Leroy 4/14/2016 4/14/2016 Nsc Northern Safety Co800-631-1246, NY 107.8

Naquin, Leroy 4/14/2016 4/14/2016 Nsc Northern Safety Co800-631-1246, NY 337.68

Naquin, Leroy 4/7/2016 4/8/2016 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 101.8

596.67

Neeley, William 4/16/2016 4/18/2016 Alliance Wireless Tech972-257-5154, TX 293.6

Niemeyer, Eugene 4/26/2016 4/27/2016 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 50.53

Niemeyer, Eugene 4/25/2016 4/27/2016 Municip Emerg/LawmenSouthbury, CT 2562.99

Niemeyer, Eugene 4/25/2016 4/27/2016 Municip Emerg/LawmenSouthbury, CT 355.9

Niemeyer, Eugene 4/25/2016 4/27/2016 Dooley Tackaberry 02814799700, TX 556.55

Niemeyer, Eugene 4/13/2016 4/15/2016 Municip Emerg/LawmenSouthbury, CT 135

Niemeyer, Eugene 4/13/2016 4/15/2016 Municip Emerg/LawmenSouthbury, CT 497.34

Niemeyer, Eugene 4/13/2016 4/15/2016 Municip Emerg/LawmenSouthbury, CT 432.58

Niemeyer, Eugene 4/13/2016 4/15/2016 Municip Emerg/LawmenSouthbury, CT 396.2

Niemeyer, Eugene 4/13/2016 4/15/2016 Municip Emerg/LawmenSouthbury, CT 15

5002.09

Nykaza, James 4/27/2016 4/29/2016 Hobby-Lobby #0160 Humble, TX 143.46

Nykaza, James 4/27/2016 4/28/2016 Rescue Direct Inc 815-6677170, IL 189.2

Nykaza, James 4/27/2016 4/28/2016 Rock N Rescue 08003467673, PA 184.25

Nykaza, James 4/25/2016 4/26/2016 Michaels Stores 5813Humble, TX 70.43

Nykaza, James 4/22/2016 4/25/2016 Online Boating Purchas800-5890703, UT 697.14

Nykaza, James 4/5/2016 4/5/2016 Galls 08592667227, KY 419.91

Nykaza, James 4/4/2016 4/6/2016 Lexisnexis Risk Dat 08883328244, FL 95

Nykaza, James 4/4/2016 4/5/2016 Mister Car Wash #9 QpsHumble, TX 14

Nykaza, James 4/1/2016 4/4/2016 Cdw Government 800-750-4239, IL 254.15

Nykaza, James 4/1/2016 4/4/2016 Gander Mountain Spring, TX 589.82

Nykaza, James 3/31/2016 4/1/2016 Cdw Government 800-750-4239, IL 73.3

2730.66

Ortiz, Raul 4/13/2016 4/14/2016 Lowes #00750 Kingwood, TX 292.11

Ortiz, Raul 4/6/2016 4/7/2016 Wm Supercenter #1837Humble, TX 88

Ortiz, Raul 4/6/2016 4/7/2016 Wal-Mart #1837 Humble, TX 88

468.11

Outlaw, Gary 4/21/2016 4/25/2016 Rescue Source Wilton, CA 2573.75

Outlaw, Gary 4/13/2016 4/18/2016 Agape Overhead Doors AHumble, TX 204.59

2778.34

Pearson, Ray 4/4/2016 4/5/2016 Wm Supercenter #1837Humble, TX 26.88

Pederson, Devin 4/21/2016 4/25/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 29.9

Peters, Richard 4/21/2016 4/22/2016 Shipley Donuts     Q48Kingwood, TX 12.38

Peters, Richard 4/13/2016 4/14/2016 Shipley Donuts     Q48Kingwood, TX 12.38

Peters, Richard 4/13/2016 4/15/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 89.98

Peters, Richard 4/12/2016 4/13/2016 Shipley Donuts     Q48Kingwood, TX 12.38

Peters, Richard 4/11/2016 4/12/2016 Officemax/Officedepot6Humble, TX 50.24

Peters, Richard 4/11/2016 4/12/2016 Shipley Donuts     Q48Kingwood, TX 15.78

Peters, Richard 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 39.56

Peters, Richard 4/6/2016 4/8/2016 Sportsmans Outlet Humble, TX 660



Peters, Richard 4/4/2016 4/6/2016 Bannon And Associates214-2285782, TX -250

Peters, Richard 4/1/2016 4/4/2016 Bannon And Associates214-2285782, TX 500

1142.7

Phillips, Aimee 4/22/2016 4/25/2016 Chuy'S Humble, TX 151.15

Phillips, Aimee 4/20/2016 4/21/2016 Government Finance 312-977-9700, IL 435

Phillips, Aimee 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 Apl  Itunes.Com/Bill 866-712-7753, CA 0.99

Phillips, Aimee 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 Apl  Itunes.Com/Bill 866-712-7753, CA -5.25

Phillips, Aimee 4/4/2016 4/6/2016 Payflow/Paypal 08888839770, NE 30

611.89

Pitts, Joshua 4/14/2016 4/18/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 40.54

Pitts, Joshua 4/13/2016 4/15/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 25.67

Pitts, Joshua 4/7/2016 4/8/2016 Total Rental Center Houston, TX 275

Pitts, Joshua 4/4/2016 4/6/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 7.97

349.18

Rhodes, Victoria 4/15/2016 4/20/2016 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 75.05

Rhodes, Victoria 4/12/2016 4/13/2016 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 57.08

Rhodes, Victoria 4/6/2016 4/7/2016 Mcw Online Paymentsqps05206154000, AZ 145.05

Rhodes, Victoria 4/6/2016 4/7/2016 American Screen Graphi09368908473, TX 2189

Rhodes, Victoria 4/4/2016 4/6/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 79

Rhodes, Victoria 3/31/2016 4/1/2016 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 37.49

Rhodes, Victoria 3/31/2016 4/1/2016 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 51.77

Rhodes, Victoria 3/31/2016 4/1/2016 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 30.57

Rhodes, Victoria 3/31/2016 4/4/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 104.94

Rhodes, Victoria 3/31/2016 4/4/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX -69

2700.95

Richard, Dale 4/29/2016 4/29/2016 Nsc Northern Safety Co800-631-1246, NY 59.76

Richard, Dale 4/23/2016 4/25/2016 Apl  Itunes.Com/Bill 866-712-7753, CA 0.99

Richard, Dale 4/14/2016 4/15/2016 Ferguson Ent #2725 281-446-3869, TX 6.52

Richard, Dale 4/14/2016 4/15/2016 Ferguson Waterworks #2757-969-4165, TX 336.7

Richard, Dale 4/13/2016 4/15/2016 M D N  Enterprises New Caney, TX 192.82

Richard, Dale 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 Boot Barn #181/BaskinsHumble, TX 35.96

Richard, Dale 4/6/2016 4/7/2016 Tractor-Supply-Co #040Porter, TX 99

Richard, Dale 3/30/2016 4/1/2016 M D N  Enterprises New Caney, TX 330.32

1062.07

Rodriguez, Jose 4/26/2016 4/28/2016 Shell Oil 57543432801Humble, TX 9.8

Rodriguez, Jose 4/25/2016 4/27/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 116.06

Rodriguez, Jose 4/25/2016 4/27/2016 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 254.94

Rodriguez, Jose 4/21/2016 4/25/2016 Aztec Rental Center Houston, TX 1314.15

Rodriguez, Jose 4/14/2016 4/18/2016 Shell Oil 57543432801Humble, TX 9.8

Rodriguez, Jose 4/12/2016 4/14/2016 Ray Despains Inc New Caney, TX 461.67

Rodriguez, Jose 4/11/2016 4/13/2016 Shell Oil 57543432801Humble, TX 19.6

Rodriguez, Jose 4/7/2016 4/11/2016 Aztec Rental Center Houston, TX 182.6

Rodriguez, Jose 3/31/2016 4/4/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 29.47

2398.09

Schultz, Jacob 4/28/2016 4/29/2016 Pp Genaromzamo Humble, TX 2055

Schultz, Jacob 4/28/2016 4/29/2016 Deerwood A/C & HeatingHumble, TX 124

Schultz, Jacob 4/27/2016 4/28/2016 Amazon Mktplace PmtsAmzn.Com/Bill, WA 273.64

Schultz, Jacob 4/27/2016 4/28/2016 Amazon Mktplace PmtsAmzn.Com/Bill, WA 225.1

Schultz, Jacob 4/26/2016 4/28/2016 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 21.75

Schultz, Jacob 4/25/2016 4/26/2016 Amazon Mktplace PmtsAmzn.Com/Bill, WA 56.95

Schultz, Jacob 4/25/2016 4/26/2016 In  K&S Sportswear 281-8522918, TX 229.5

Schultz, Jacob 4/15/2016 4/18/2016 Farmtek 8605281119, CT 670.32

Schultz, Jacob 4/13/2016 4/14/2016 Sherwin Williams 70731Humble, TX 105.18

Schultz, Jacob 4/13/2016 4/14/2016 Farmtek 8605281119, CT 1366.1

Schultz, Jacob 4/13/2016 4/14/2016 Deerwood A/C & HeatingHumble, TX 1017

Schultz, Jacob 4/12/2016 4/14/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX -272.62

Schultz, Jacob 4/11/2016 4/13/2016 Half Price Boxes - HumHumble, TX 56

Schultz, Jacob 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 Harbor Freight Tools 4Humble, TX 533.96



Schultz, Jacob 4/4/2016 4/6/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 340.77

Schultz, Jacob 4/1/2016 4/4/2016 Amazon.Com Amzn.Com/Bill, WA 15.87

Schultz, Jacob 4/1/2016 4/4/2016 Star Cleaners Humble, TX 72

6890.52

Scott, Randy 4/21/2016 4/22/2016 Vitalpet 1 Humble, TX 25

Scott, Randy 4/13/2016 4/14/2016 Tractor-Supply-Co #040Porter, TX 6.99

Scott, Randy 4/13/2016 4/14/2016 Wm Supercenter #1837Humble, TX 39.96

Scott, Randy 4/13/2016 4/14/2016 Knox Drive Farm And FePorter, TX 35

Scott, Randy 4/11/2016 4/12/2016 Vitalpet 1 Humble, TX 20

Scott, Randy 4/11/2016 4/12/2016 Petco 479     63504799Humble, TX 5.96

Scott, Randy 4/4/2016 4/6/2016 Campbell Pet Co - WholTel3608929786, WA 142

Scott, Randy 4/1/2016 4/4/2016 Vitalpet 1 Humble, TX 15

289.91

Stanford, Paul 3/31/2016 4/1/2016 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 25

Stephens, Philisa 4/28/2016 4/29/2016 Cdw Government 800-750-4239, IL 243.37

Stephens, Philisa 4/28/2016 4/29/2016 Deep Surplus Laguna Niguel, CA 92.56

Stephens, Philisa 4/28/2016 4/29/2016 Www.Newegg.Com 800-390-1119, CA 85.33

Stephens, Philisa 4/27/2016 4/28/2016 Deep Surplus Laguna Niguel, CA 159.64

Stephens, Philisa 4/26/2016 4/27/2016 Bestbuycom784588062016888-237289, MN 549.98

Stephens, Philisa 4/7/2016 4/7/2016 Www.Newegg.Com 800-390-1119, CA 100.07

Stephens, Philisa 4/5/2016 4/6/2016 Amazon Mktplace PmtsAmzn.Com/Bill, WA 130.66

Stephens, Philisa 3/31/2016 4/1/2016 Cdw Government 800-750-4239, IL 591.9

1953.51

Taska, Allison 4/29/2016 4/29/2016 Comcast Of Houston 713-341-1000, TX 95.14

Taska, Allison 4/13/2016 4/15/2016 Jimmy Johns - 1822 Humble, TX 154.34

Taska, Allison 4/13/2016 4/15/2016 The Home Depot 6523Porter, TX 71.94

Taska, Allison 4/12/2016 4/13/2016 Helens Humble Flower281-446-3035, TX 85

Taska, Allison 4/8/2016 4/8/2016 Comcast Of Houston 713-341-1000, TX 127.89

Taska, Allison 4/8/2016 4/8/2016 Comcast Of Houston 713-341-1000, TX 112.38

646.69

Taylor, Tony 4/6/2016 4/8/2016 Shell Oil 12469510007Cleveland, TX 20.03

Theis, Kenneth 4/28/2016 4/29/2016 In  Burleson Home Furn405-2077602, TX 249

Thiem, Landon 4/21/2016 4/22/2016 Kroger #190 Humble, TX 50.14

Thiem, Landon 4/12/2016 4/13/2016 Kroger #190 Humble, TX 32.36

82.5

Tullos, Bradley 4/19/2016 4/20/2016 Vitalpet 1 Humble, TX 15

Tullos, Bradley 4/8/2016 4/11/2016 Bugtime Termite & PestHumble, TX 119

Tullos, Bradley 4/7/2016 4/11/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 13.49

147.49

Tunningley, Noah 4/22/2016 4/25/2016 Lennys Sub Shop 288Humble, TX 140

Tworek, John 4/9/2016 4/11/2016 Autozone #1472 Humble, TX 11.98

Vera, Donnelly 4/26/2016 4/27/2016 Wm Supercenter #297Porter, TX 375

Vera, Donnelly 4/24/2016 4/25/2016 Kroger #338 Porter, TX 225

Vera, Donnelly 4/12/2016 4/14/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 175

775

Villa, Joel 4/26/2016 4/27/2016 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 25.94

Villa, Joel 4/26/2016 4/27/2016 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX -25.94

Villa, Joel 4/26/2016 4/27/2016 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 23.96

Villa, Joel 4/26/2016 4/27/2016 Samsclub #6367 Humble, TX 138.84

Villa, Joel 4/26/2016 4/28/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 11.94

Villa, Joel 4/21/2016 4/22/2016 Sherwin Williams 70731Humble, TX 125.25

Villa, Joel 4/20/2016 4/21/2016 Sherwin Williams 70731Humble, TX 58.87



Villa, Joel 4/18/2016 4/20/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 56.16

Villa, Joel 4/15/2016 4/18/2016 Stripes And Stops CompHouston, TX 24.1

Villa, Joel 4/15/2016 4/18/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 31.84

Villa, Joel 4/15/2016 4/18/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 53.53

Villa, Joel 4/13/2016 4/15/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 41.51

Villa, Joel 4/13/2016 4/15/2016 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 44.59

Villa, Joel 4/12/2016 4/13/2016 Sherwin Williams 70731Humble, TX 12.65

Villa, Joel 4/12/2016 4/13/2016 Sherwin Williams 70731Humble, TX 35.57

Villa, Joel 4/11/2016 4/12/2016 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 29.95

Villa, Joel 4/11/2016 4/12/2016 Wm Supercenter #1837Humble, TX 19.92

Villa, Joel 4/11/2016 4/12/2016 Sams Club #6367 Humble, TX 147.6

Villa, Joel 4/11/2016 4/12/2016 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 399.95

Villa, Joel 4/11/2016 4/12/2016 Sherwin Williams 70731Humble, TX 251.07

1507.3

Watkins, Wyatt 4/22/2016 4/25/2016 Tms Post Haste Copy &Humble, TX 28.56

Watkins, Wyatt 4/5/2016 4/6/2016 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 66

Watkins, Wyatt 4/5/2016 4/7/2016 Immixtechnology, In 703-750-0610, VA 1040.4

1134.96

Zavala, Sylvia 4/6/2016 4/7/2016 Ability Network Inc 6124604311, MN 95



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-28-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #2D 

 

MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





























































































































 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-28-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #2E 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
June 24, 2016 

Number 23 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Texas Supreme Court Reverses Itself in Flooding Case 

 
The Texas Supreme Court, in a rare move, reversed itself last week and issued a new opinion in 
Harris County Flood Control District v. Kerr.  The case began when over 400 landowners and 
former landowners whose properties were damaged by flooding sued Harris County, making 
inverse condemnation (taking) and nuisance claims.  They argued that Harris County and the 
Harris County Flood Control District (Harris County) approved new upstream development 
without implementing appropriate flood-control measures, and did so even though they were 
substantially certain that flooding of the properties would result. 
 
Harris County argued that there were no facts supporting the landowners’ claims that it intended 
to flood their properties.  (“Intent” to cause the taking is a required element for such a claim.) 
Both the trial and court of appeals disagreed.  Harris County appealed, asking the Texas Supreme 
Court to consider whether or not the homeowners raised a fact question regarding the elements 
of a governmental taking. 
 
The Texas Supreme Court issued its initial opinion on June 12, 2015, holding in a 5-4 decision 
that the homeowners had raised a fact issue by presenting evidence demonstrating that: (1) Harris 
County knew unmitigated development would lead to flooding; (2) Harris County approved 
development without appropriately mitigating it; and (3) the approval caused the flooding. 
Despite the majority’s assurance that “We do not decide the merits of the dispute, nor do we 
mean to imply that the government entities have a duty to prevent all flooding,” the opinion 
caused a wave of controversy and concern among counties and cities.   
 

http://www.search.txcourts.gov/SearchMedia.aspx?MediaVersionID=8e209b6a-efc6-4363-ae4f-8ac8e0072848&coa=cossup&DT=OPINION&MediaID=f679f533-f18c-4e9c-8de7-f5e489271b2a


2 
 
 

Harris County sought and the Court granted a rehearing on February 19.  More than a dozen 
amicus (“friends of the court”) briefs, including one by the Conference of Urban Counties, Texas 
Association of Counties, and TML, were filed in conjunction with the motion for rehearing.  
 
On June 17, the Court withdrew its original opinion and issued a substitute opinion.  In an 
important win for cities, counties and other entities across the state, the Court dismissed the 
plaintiffs’ lawsuit, holding that Harris County was not responsible for damages suffered from the 
flooding.  “[T]he record is clear that the County never harbored a desire to cause flooding 
anywhere.  Its motive was the opposite:  it desired to prevent flooding and undertook extensive 
efforts over many years to accomplish this goal,” the Court stated.  The Court also agreed with 
arguments that, if the lawsuit was successful, it would significantly extend takings liability and 
“encourage governments to do nothing to prevent flooding [and other problems], instead of 
studying and addressing the problem.” 
 

 

General Law Cities: 
Grass-Roots Support Needed to Clarify Authority over Sex 

Offender Residency 
 
A number of legal challenges to the authority of general law cities to regulate where sex 
offenders can live are moving through the courts.  But general law cities that wish to clarify their 
authority should act now to pave the way for legislative action next session.  State Representative 
Drew Springer (R – Muenster) has asked interested general law cities to adopt a resolution in 
support of legislation to clarify their authority.  (Any city adopting such a resolution should send 
it to Monty Wynn at monty@tml.org in the League’s legislative department for delivery to Rep. 
Springer’s office.) 
 
For example, the City of Eustace adopted a resolution doing just that.  In the meantime, the issue 
of legislative clarification will be considered by the TML Legislative Policy Committee on 
General Government in Austin on August 19. It is expected that the League’s current position to 
“support legislation that would clarify the authority of general law cities to enact sex offender 
residency restrictions” will be re-adopted for 2017.  
 
The League will provide continued updates on the lawsuits and legislative efforts. 
 
 

Payday Lending Clearinghouse Updates 
 
The League’s “Payday Lending Clearinghouse” webpage, available at www.tml.org/payday-
updates, includes information related to the regulation of payday and auto title lenders. It is 
updated from time-to-time to reflect recent developments. Interested city officials should note 
that, on June 16, the Texas Supreme Court denied a petition for review filed by ACE Cash 
Express.  The denial essentially ends ACE’s lawsuit against the City of Denton, and does so in 
the city’s favor.  

mailto:monty@tml.org
http://www.tml.org/p/2016%20RESOLUTION%20Sex%20Offender%20Residence.pdf
http://www.tml.org/payday-updates
http://www.tml.org/payday-updates


3 
 
 

 
 

Oil and Gas Regulation Clearinghouse 
 
As reported last December, the first post-H.B. 40 lawsuit was filed against the City of Rockdale.  
On June 13, a federal district court found in favor of the city and dismissed the case.  To assist 
cities dealing with oil and gas drilling issues, the League has created the “Oil and Gas 
Regulation” webpage at www.tml.org (Go to the Legal tab and click on the Topics drop down 
menu).  The page contains more information about the case, and the actual court order.   
 
 

Resolutions for the 2016 TML Annual Conference 
 
The TML Constitution states that resolutions for consideration at the Annual Conference must be 
submitted to the TML headquarters 45 calendar days prior to the first day of the Annual 
Conference. For 2016, this provision means that resolutions from any member city, TML region, 
or TML affiliate must arrive at the TML headquarters no later than 5:00 p.m. on August 22, 
2016. 
 
The TML Board of Directors has adopted several procedures governing the resolutions process. 
Please review the following items carefully and thoroughly. 

 
1. No resolution may be considered by the TML Resolutions Committee 

unless it has prior approval of: (a) the governing body of a TML member 
city; (b) the governing body or membership of a TML affiliate, or (c) the 
membership of a TML region at a regional meeting. 
 

2. TML member cities, regions, and affiliates that wish to submit a resolution 
must complete a resolution cover sheet. The cover sheet is available here. 
The cover sheet must be attached to the resolution throughout each step of 
the resolutions process. 

 
3. It is recommended that any resolution state one of four categories to better 

direct League staff.  Those categories are: 
 

 Seek Introduction and Passage means that the League will attempt to 
find a sponsor, will provide testimony, and will otherwise actively 
pursue passage. Bills in this category are known as “TML bills.”   

 
 Support means the League will attempt to obtain passage of the 

initiative if it is introduced by a city or some other entity.  
 

 Oppose. 
 

 Take No Position. 

http://www.tml.org/
http://www.tml.org/p/2016%20Resolution%20Cover%20sheet.doc


4 
 
 

 
Please see the 2015-2016 TML Legislative Policy Development Process 
for more information. 
 

4. Resolutions submitted will be thoroughly discussed at the TML Annual 
Conference.  The Resolutions Committee is appointed by the TML 
President and is made up of city officials from TML member cities across 
the state. 
 

5. The city, region, or affiliate that submits a resolution is encouraged to send 
a representative to the Resolutions Committee meeting to explain the 
resolution. The Resolutions Committee will meet at 2:00 p.m. on 
Tuesday, October 4, 2016, at the Austin Convention Center. 

 
If the procedures described above are not followed for any given resolution, that resolution is 
likely to be referred to some other TML committee for further study. In that case, the resolution 
would not be adopted during the 2016 conference. 
 
Under the TML Constitution, resolutions received after the deadline of August 22, 2016, must 
not only have the attached cover sheet, but also must “state the reason precluding timely 
submission.” These late resolutions may be considered by the TML Resolutions Committee at 
the Annual Conference only if two-thirds of the Committee members present and voting agree to 
suspend the submission rule and consider the resolution. 
 
Resolutions may be submitted by mail, fax, or by e-mail to Scott Houston, Deputy Executive 
Director and General Counsel, at: 
 
1821 Rutherford Lane, Suite 400 
Austin, Texas  78754 
Fax: 512-231-7490 
Email:  shouston@tml.org 
 
If you have any questions or would like any assistance, please call 512-231-7400 at any time. 
 
 
 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any 

purpose. No other person or entity may reproduce, 

duplicate, or distribute any part of this document without 

the written authorization of the Texas Municipal League. 

http://www.tml.org/p/2015_TML_Policy_Process.pdf
mailto:shouston@tml.org


 

 
July 1, 2016 
Number 24 

 
 

 
Resolutions for the 2016 TML Annual Conference 

 
The TML Constitution states that resolutions for consideration at the Annual Conference must be 
submitted to the TML headquarters 45 calendar days prior to the first day of the Annual 
Conference. For 2016, this provision means that resolutions from any member city, TML region, 
or TML affiliate must arrive at the TML headquarters no later than 5:00 p.m. on August 22, 
2016. 
 
The TML Board of Directors has adopted several procedures governing the resolutions process. 
Please review the following items carefully and thoroughly. 

 
1. No resolution may be considered by the TML Resolutions Committee 

unless it has prior approval of: (a) the governing body of a TML member 
city; (b) the governing body or membership of a TML affiliate, or (c) the 
membership of a TML region at a regional meeting. 
 

2. TML member cities, regions, and affiliates that wish to submit a resolution 
must complete a resolution cover sheet. The cover sheet is available here. 
The cover sheet must be attached to the resolution throughout each step of 
the resolutions process. 

 
3. It is recommended that any resolution state one of four categories to better 

direct League staff.  Those categories are: 
 

 Seek Introduction and Passage means that the League will attempt to 
find a sponsor, will provide testimony, and will otherwise actively 
pursue passage. Bills in this category are known as “TML bills.”   

 

http://www.tml.org/p/2016%20Resolution%20Cover%20sheet.doc


2 
 
 

 Support means the League will attempt to obtain passage of the 
initiative if it is introduced by a city or some other entity.  

 
 Oppose. 

 
 Take No Position. 

 
Please see the 2015-2016 TML Legislative Policy Development Process 
for more information. 
 

4. Resolutions submitted will be thoroughly discussed at the TML Annual 
Conference.  The Resolutions Committee is appointed by the TML 
President and is made up of city officials from TML member cities across 
the state. 
 

5. The city, region, or affiliate that submits a resolution is encouraged to send 
a representative to the Resolutions Committee meeting to explain the 
resolution. The Resolutions Committee will meet at 2:00 p.m. on 
Tuesday, October 4, 2016, at the Austin Convention Center. 

 
If the procedures described above are not followed for any given resolution, that resolution is 
likely to be referred to some other TML committee for further study. In that case, the resolution 
would not be adopted during the 2016 conference. 
 
Under the TML Constitution, resolutions received after the deadline of August 22, 2016, must 
not only have the attached cover sheet, but also must “state the reason precluding timely 
submission.” These late resolutions may be considered by the TML Resolutions Committee at 
the Annual Conference only if two-thirds of the Committee members present and voting agree to 
suspend the submission rule and consider the resolution. 
 
Resolutions may be submitted by mail, fax, or by e-mail to Scott Houston, Deputy Executive 
Director and General Counsel, at: 
 
1821 Rutherford Lane, Suite 400 
Austin, Texas  78754 
Fax: 512-231-7490 
Email:  shouston@tml.org 
 
If you have any questions or would like any assistance, please call 512-231-7400 at any time. 
 
 
 TML member cities may use the material herein for any 

purpose. No other person or entity may reproduce, 

duplicate, or distribute any part of this document without 

the written authorization of the Texas Municipal League. 

http://www.tml.org/p/2015_TML_Policy_Process.pdf
mailto:shouston@tml.org


 

 
July 8, 2016 
Number 25 

 
 
 
 
 

Cities in the PUC’s Crosshairs 
 

The Texas Public Utility Commission is the state agency that regulates private utility providers.  
Every so often, however, the Commission seeks to expand its authority to include cities.   
 
For example, the Commission sought input on whether it could completely eliminate 
telecommunications franchise fees in 2009.  Of course, it doesn’t have the statutory authority to 
do so.  Since that time, only a handful of instances have required intervention to preserve 
municipal authority. 
 
Fast-forward to this year, and it appears that a number of private utility providers, including 
telecommunications, water, and electric, are using the Commission to seek to chip away at 
municipal authority.  The League has filed briefs in five proceedings in the last six months that 
seek to usurp municipal authority:   
 

1. Right-of-Way Fees:  Public Utilities Commission Docket No. 45280, Complaint of 
Extenet Network Sys., Inc. against the City of Houston for imposition of fees for use of 
public right-of-way.   In this proceeding, a certificated telecommunications provider is 
asking the Commission to allow it to place wireless telecommunications equipment in a 
city’s rights-of-way by right and without paying compensation to the city. The brief in 
support of the City of Houston was filed on February 17, 2016.  

 
2. Water Rate Jurisdiction: Appeal of Water and Sewer Rates Charged by the Town of 

Woodloch Nos. 12312 and 20141, PUC Docket No. 42862. In this proceeding, the 
Commission asserted jurisdiction over the in-city rates of a municipally owned water 
utility.  The League filed comments in support of the City of Woodloch on April 25, 
2016, and also filed reply comments on May 5, 2016.    



2 
 
 

 
3. Certificates of Convenience and Necessity: Application of the City of Cibolo for Single 

Certification in an Incorporated Area and to Decertify Portions of Green Valley SUD’s 
Sewer Certificate of Convenience and Necessity in Guadalupe County, PUC Docket No. 
45702.  In this proceeding, a special utility district argues that federal debt in connection 
with its sewer certificate of convenience and necessity is enough to prohibit a city from 
decertifying a portion of the city’s water CCN under state law.  The League filed 
comments in support of the City of Cibolo on June 14, 2016.   

 
4. Municipal Subdivision Ordinance/Electric Undergrounding:  Appeal of CenterPoint 

Energy Houston Electric, LLC from an Ordinance of the City of League City, Texas and 
Application for Declaratory Relief, PUC Docket No. 45259. In this docket, CenterPoint 
Energy claims that a city may not, through its subdivision ordinance, require a developer 
to request undergrounded distribution lines pursuant to a city’s subdivision ordinance.  
The League filed a letter in support of League City on June 29, 2016.  

 
5. Municipal Zoning/PUC Jurisdiction:  Appeal of Brazos Electric Cooperative, Inc. and 

Denton County Electric Cooperative, Inc. D/B/A CoServ Electric from an Ordinance of 
The Colony, Texas, and, in the alternative, Application for a Declaratory Order, PUC 
Docket No. 45175. In this docket, electric cooperatives appeal a city’s denial of a specific 
use permit for an electric substation and claim that the Commission has jurisdiction to 
overturn the city’s zoning ordinance.  The League filed comments in support of the City 
of The Colony on July 8, 2016. 

 
Standing alone, each of the Commission proceedings above could have a serious impact on 
cities.  Altogether, they could be devastating.  League staff will continue to monitor and 
participate as necessary. 
 
 

Attorney General Opinion: 
Cities Can’t Prohibit Licensed Carry in Executive Session 

 
On June 27, the attorney general issued Opinion No. KP-0098. The League contends that the 
opinion confuses the meaning of the term “open meeting” in a way that would mistakenly permit 
the carrying of handguns into executive sessions, even in cases where they are prohibited in the 
main meeting.  The request for the opinion asked multiple questions concerning the requirements 
a city must follow when “posting notice about the carrying of handguns at open and closed 
meetings of a city council.” 
 
Legislation passed in 2015 prohibits licensed carry “in the room or rooms where a meeting of a 
governmental entity is held and if the meeting is an open meeting subject to [the Open Meetings 
Act] and the entity provided notice…” 
 
Sections 30.06 and 30.07 of the Penal Code provide the language to be used in a notice to 
prohibit entry with a concealed handgun and entry with a handgun that is carried openly.  The 

https://texasattorneygeneral.gov/opinions/opinions/51paxton/op/2016/kp0098.pdf


3 
 
 

request was meant to clarify where the signs should be posted.  That clarification was sought 
because Section 30.06 states that the concealed carry prohibition sign should be “displayed in a 
conspicuous manner clearly visible to the public.”  Section 30.07, for some inexplicable reason, 
has additional language stating that the open carry prohibition sign should be “displayed in a 
conspicuous manner clearly visible to the public at each entrance to the property.” 
 
The confusion came from the fact that a city can’t generally prohibit open carry in city facilities, 
so it wouldn’t make sense to post that sign “at each entrance to the property.”  Most attorneys 
had simply advised that a city wanting to prohibit carry in the meeting room do so by 
temporarily posting the signs at the entrance to the room when a meeting is taking place.  The 
opinion essentially agreed, but it also included an analysis related to “closed meetings.”   
 
The 2015 legislation prohibiting licensed carry “in the room or rooms where a meeting of a 
governmental entity is held and if the meeting is an open meeting” was added to clarify that only 
meetings of bodies governed by the Open Meetings Act are off limits, and only then if a city 
posts signage.  The phrase “open meeting” in that statute clearly means one that is subject to the 
Open Meetings Act.  However, the attorney general office reads it literally to not include a 
“closed meeting (i.e., an executive session).”  In other words, the opinion concludes that a city 
can’t prohibit a person from licensed carrying into an executive session. 
 
Of course, only members of the governing body have an absolute right to be in an executive 
session anyway.  And a city can prohibit its employees from carrying at all while at work.  But 
it’s conceivable that the governing body could invite some other person to attend an executive 
session.  If that’s the case, the attorney general says the city can’t prohibit that citizen from 
licensed carrying in that meeting.    
 
On July 5, the League submitted a letter requesting that the attorney general’s office reconsider 
the portion of the opinion related to executive sessions.   
 
 

Lawsuit:  Licensed Carry in Court Buildings 
 
In the wake of two confusing attorney general opinions related to licensed handgun carry, court 
facilities, and signage, some local governments called foul.  The issue is whether the entire 
building that houses a court, or only the actual courtroom and court offices, is off-limits to 
licensed carriers.  Waller County, located northwest of Houston, has filed a lawsuit to find out 
the answer. 
 
Terry Holcomb is the leader of the group known as Open Carry Texas, and spends much of his 
time complaining about governmental entities posting licensed carry signage in what he alleges 
is the wrong place or with the wrong wording.  He sent a written complaint to Waller County 
officials claiming that – based on a recently-issued attorney general opinion – they can’t prohibit 
licensed carry in the entire courthouse building.  He also claims that the attorney general’s office, 
under its investigatory authority over signage, can seek civil penalties against the county if it 
refuses to remove its signs.  (Another recently-issued attorney general opinion incorrectly asserts 
investigatory authority that is not authorized by law.) 

http://www.tml.org/legis_updates/licensed-carry-and-courts-attorney-general-opinions-confuse-the-issues
http://www.tml.org/legis_updates/licensed-handgun-carry-and-buildings-that-house-municipal-courts-and-court-offices
http://www.tml.org/p/Declaratory%20Judgment%20with%20Exhibit_Waller%20County%20v%20Terry%20Holcomb%20Sr.pdf
https://www.texasattorneygeneral.gov/opinions/opinions/51paxton/op/2015/kp0047.pdf
https://www.texasattorneygeneral.gov/opinions/opinions/51paxton/op/2015/kp0049.pdf


4 
 
 

 
The county filed a lawsuit against Mr. Holcomb seeking a declaratory judgment from a district 
court that: (1) the entire courthouse is off-limits to licensed carriers; and (2) the attorney 
general’s office doesn’t have as much enforcement authority as it claims.  The ultimate answer 
from that court case should provide guidance to cities that house municipal courtrooms and court 
offices in multi-use city facilities.   
 
 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any 
purpose. No other person or entity may reproduce, 
duplicate, or distribute any part of this document without 
the written authorization of the Texas Municipal League. 



 

 
July 22, 2016 

Number 26 
 
 
 
 
 

Texas Voter ID Law Violates the Voting Rights Act 
 
 
In the latest chapter in Texas’ five-year long voter ID saga, the federal Fifth Circuit Court of 
Appeals determined in Marc Veasey Et Al v. Greg Abbott Et Al, a lengthy opinion that the law 
does, in fact, violate Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act. A majority of the Fifth Circuit’s 15 
judges held that the voter ID legislation has a “discriminatory effect.”  
 
Interestingly, the Court did not “strike down” the law. Instead, it remanded the case back to 
district court to “fix” the law’s discriminatory effect. According to the opinion, “[i]t would be 
untenable to permit a law with a discriminatory effect to remain in operation for” the November 
2016 election. Due to the fact that the November election is only a few months away, the Court 
recognized that a legislative fix in a special legislative session isn’t feasible. As a result, the 
opinion expressly permits the district court to enter an order that remedies the discriminatory 
effect.  
 
What will the district court’s “fix” look like? The opinion provides that the district court must do 
so “while respecting the Legislature’s stated objective to safeguard the integrity of elections by 
requiring more secure forms of voter identification.” City election officials can therefore expect 
much of the current voter ID law to remain in place, albeit with some additional safeguards to 
protect previously disenfranchised voters. The opinion suggests that the district court could 
remedy the law by reinstating voter registration cards as acceptable identification, or potentially 
allowing for an indigence exception to the current voter ID requirement. 
 
The full opinion can be read here. The League will continue to monitor and report on the case.  
 

 

http://www.tml.org/legis_updates/voter-id-still-in-court-nearly-five-years-later
https://static.texastribune.org/media/documents/VoterID5thCircuit.pdf
https://static.texastribune.org/media/documents/VoterID5thCircuit.pdf


2 
 
 

 
Committee to Consider Internet Posting of Legal Notices 

 
Last session, the Texas Legislature passed a resolution creating the Joint Interim Committee on 
Advertising Public Notices.  On August 18, the committee will hear testimony related to “the use 
of technology in the posting and advertising to the public of legally required notices.”  The 
meeting will be in the Capitol Extension, Room E1.030, at 1:00 p.m.   
 
League staff has been invited to testify, and will advocate for the abandonment of the archaic and 
costly system of printed newspaper publication.   
 
 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any 

purpose. No other person or entity may reproduce, 

duplicate, or distribute any part of this document without 

the written authorization of the Texas Municipal League. 

http://www.senate.state.tx.us/75r/Senate/commit/c801/c801.htm
http://www.senate.state.tx.us/75r/Senate/commit/c801/c801.htm


 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-28-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #3  

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

RE-ADOPTION OF CURFEW ORDINANCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF HUMBLE 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 16-782 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS READOPTING 
CITY OF HUMBLE ORDINANCE 13-719 WHICH ESTABLISHED A 
CURFEW FOR PERSONS UNDER THE AGE OF 17 YEARS, BETWEEN 
11:00 P.M. ON SUNDAY, MONDAY, TUESDAY, WEDNESDAY, OR 
THURSDAY AND 6:00 A.M. ON THE FOLLOWING DAY, BETWEEN 
THE HOURS OF 12:01 A.M. AND 6:00 A.M. ON ANY SATURDAY OR 
SUNDAY, AND BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 9:00 A.M. AND 2:30 P.M. 
FOR SCHOOL-AGED CHILDREN ON SCHOOL DAYS; PROVIDING IT 
UNLAWFUL FOR ANY PERSON SUBJECT TO A CURFEW 
HEREUNDER TO REMAIN IN ANY PUBLIC PLACE OR ON THE 
PREMISES OF ANY ESTABLISHMENT WITHIN THE CITY DURING 
CURFEW HOURS; PROVIDING IT UNLAWFUL FOR ANY PARENT OR 
GUARDIAN OF AP ERSON SUBJECT TO A CURFEW HEREUNDER TO 
KNOWINGLY PERMIT, OR BY INSUFFICIENT CONTROL, ALLOW 
SUCH PERSON TO REMAIN IN ANY PUBLIC PLACE OR ON THE 
PREMISES OF ANY ESTABLISHMENT WITHIN THE CITY DURING 
CURFEW HOURS; PROVIDING IT UNLAWFUL FOR ANY PERSON 
OWNING, OPERATING, OR IN THE EMPLOYMENT OF ANY 
ESTABLISHMENT IN THE CITY TO KNOWINGLY ALLOW A 
PERSON SUBJECT TO A CURFEW HEREUNDER TO REMAIN ON 
THE PREMISES OF SUCH ESTABLISHMENT DURING CURFEW 
HOURS; PROVIDING DEFENSES TO PROSECUTION FOR 
VIOLATIONS HEREUNDER; PROVIDING A PENALTY OF AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $500.00 FOR EACH DAY OF VIOLATION 
OF ANY PROVISION HEREOF; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS; 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES 
INCONSISTENT OR IN CONFLICT HEREWITH AND PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY.  IT IS THE INTENTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT THE PROVISIONS OF THIS 
ORDINANCE SHALL BECOME AND BE MADE PART OF THE CODE 
OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS AND THE SECTIONS 
OF THIS ORDINANCE MAY BE RENUMBERED TO ACCOMPLISH 
SUCH INTENTION. 
 

 
WHEREAS, public hearings were conducted on July 28, 2016 and August 11, 2016 to consider an 

extension of the juvenile curfew ordinance for a term of three years and it was the 
opinion of the City Council to extend the ordinance for three years as the City Council 
has determined that the curfew ordinance has had a positive effect as a deterrent to 
juvenile violence, juvenile gang activity, and crime committed by persons under the 
age of 17 years in the City of Humble, Texas; and 

 



 2 

WHEREAS, due to their lack of maturity and experience, persons under the age of 17 years are 
particularly susceptible to participate in unlawful and gang-related activities and to be 
victims of older perpetrators of crime; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Humble has an obligation to provide for the protection of minors from each 

other and from other persons, for the enforcement of parental control over the 
responsibility for children, for the protection of the general public and for the reduction 
of the incidence of juvenile violence and criminal activity; and 

 
WHEREAS, a curfew applicable to persons under the age of 17 years will be in the interest of public 

health, safety and general welfare and will diminish the undesirable impact of such 
conduct on the citizens of the City of Humble;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1. The facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are 
hereby found to be true and correct. 

 
Section 2. Purpose.  It is the express purpose of this ordinance to (a) deter criminal 

conduct involving juveniles, (b) reduce the number of juvenile crime 
victims, (c) reduce injury from accidents involving juveniles, (d) reduce the 
additional time police officers are required to be in the field due to juvenile 
crime, (e) provide additional and more effective means and options for 
dealing with gang-related violence and crime, (f) reduce juvenile peer 
pressure to stay out late, (g) reduce juvenile peer pressure to participate in 
violent or criminal activities and (h) assist parents in the control of their 
children. 

 
Section 3. Definitions.  For the purposes of this Ordinance the following words or 

terms shall have the meanings ascribed thereto: 
 

(A)  Curfew Hours shall mean: 
 

(1) 11:00 p.m. on any Sunday, Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, 
or Thursday until 6:00 a.m. of the following day; 

(2) 12:01 a.m. until 6:00 a.m. on any Saturday or Sunday; and 
(3) 9:00 a.m. until 2:30 p.m. on any Monday, Tuesday, 

Wednesday, Thursday or Friday; provided, however, the 
hours defined in this paragraph (3) shall not be considered as 
Curfew Hours for minors not subject to compulsory school 
attendance pursuant to §21.032, Texas Education Code, nor 
shall the hours defined in this paragraph (3) be considered as 
Curfew Hours on days or during periods in which the school 
were the applicable minor is enrolled is closed or classes for 
which the applicable minor is enrolled have been canceled 
under the order and direction of officials authorized to issue 
such orders and directives. 



 3 

 
(B) Emergency shall mean any unforeseen combination of 

circumstances or the resulting state that calls for immediate action.  
This term shall include, but not be limited to, a fire, natural disaster, 
automobile accidents or any situation requiring immediate action to 
prevent serious bodily injury or loss of life. 
 

(C) Establishment shall mean any privately owned place of business 
operated for a profit to which the public is invited including, but not 
limited to, any place of amusement or entertainment. 

 
(D) Guardian  shall mean a person who, under court order, is the 

guardian of the person of a minor or a public or private agency with 
whom a minor has been placed by a court. 

 
(E) Minor  shall mean any person under 17 years of age. 

 
(F) Operator  shall mean any individual, firm, association, partnership 

or corporation operating, managing or conducting any 
establishment.  The term includes the members or partners of an 
association or partnership and the officers of a corporation. 

 
(G) Parent  shall mean a person who is a natural parent, adoptive 

parents, stepparent of a minor, a responsible adult or a person at 
least 18 years of age who is authorized by the parent or guardian to 
have the care and custody of such minor. 

 
(H) Police Department  shall mean the Humble Police Department or 

any successor police department of the City of Humble. 
 

(I) Public Place  shall mean any place to which the public or a 
substantial group of the public has access and shall include but not 
be limited to, streets, highways and the common areas of schools, 
hospitals, apartment houses, office buildings, transport facilities, 
restaurants, theaters, game rooms, shops, shopping centers or any 
other place that offers for sale services or merchandise.  

 
(J) Remain  shall mean to linger or stay or fail to leave premises when 

required to do so by a police officer or the owner, operator or other 
person in control of the premises. 

 
(K) Serious Bodily Injury  shall mean bodily injury that creates a 

substantial risk of death or that causes death, serious permanent 
disfigurement or protracted loss or impairment of the function of 
any bodily member or organ. 

 
    Section 4 Offenses.   



 4 

(A) It shall be unlawful for any minor to knowingly remain, walk, run, 
stand or operate or ride about in any motor vehicle or bicycle in or 
upon any public place or on the premises of any establishment 
within the City during curfew hours. 
 

(B) It shall be unlawful for the parent or guardian of a minor to 
knowingly permit, or by insufficient control, allow a minor to 
remain in or upon any public place or on the premises of any 
establishment within the City during curfew hours. 

 
(C) It shall be unlawful for the owner, operator or any employee of an 

establishment to knowingly allow a minor to remain upon the 
premises of the establishment during curfew hours.   

 
 Section 5 Defenses.  

(A) It shall be a defense to prosecution under Section 4 of this 
Ordinance that the minor was: 
 
(1) accompanied by the minor’s parent or guardian; 
(2) on an errand at the direction of the minor’s parent or 

guardian; 
(3) in a motor vehicle involved in interstate travel; 
(4) engaged in lawful employment activity or going directly to 

the employment activity or returning directly to the minor’s 
residence from the employment activity; 

(5) involved in an emergency; 
(6) on an errand made necessary by an illness, injury, or 

emergency;  
(7) on the sidewalk abutting the minor’s permanent residence or 

abutting the residence of a next door neighbor of the minor’s 
permanent residence if the neighbor did not complain to the 
police department about the minor’s presence thereon; 

(8) attending a school, religious or government sponsored or 
other civic activity supervised by adults and sponsored by an 
educational, religious, or governmental institution, civic 
organization or other similar entity, or traveling directly to or 
returning from any such school, religious, governmental or 
civic activity. 

(9) engaged, participating in or traveling to or from any event, 
function, or activity for which the application of Section 4 of 
this Ordinance would contravene the minor’s rights 
protected by the United States Constitution including, but 
not limited to, First Amendment rights such as the free 
exercise of religion, freedom of speech or the right of 
assembly. 

(10) married or had been married or had disabilities of minority 
removed in accordance with Chapter 31 of the Texas Family 
Code. 



 5 

(B) It is a defense to prosecution under Section 4(C) that the owner, 
operator or employee of an establishment promptly notified the 
police department that a minor was present on the premises of the 
establishment during curfew hours and the minor refused to leave.  
 

(C) It is a defense to prosecution under Section 4 of this Ordinance that 
the minor has been directed by his or her parent or guardian to 
engage in a specific activity or to carry out expressed instructions 
during the time that the minor is actually engaged in fulfilling those 
directions or responsibilities.  

 
Section 6 Enforcement.  Before taking any enforcement action under this Ordinance, a 

police officer shall ask the apparent offender’s age and reason for being in 
the public place or establishment.  The officer shall not issue a citation or 
make an arrest under this Ordinance unless the officer reasonably believes 
that an offense has occurred and that based on any response and other 
circumstances, no defense in Section 5 is present. 

 
Section 7 Penalties. 

(A) A person who shall violate any provision of this Ordinance shall be 
deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be 
fined in an amount not to exceed $500.00.  Each day of violation 
shall constitute a separate offense. 

(B) When required by Section 51.08 of the Texas Family Code as 
amended, the municipal court shall waive original jurisdiction over a 
minor who violates Section 4(A) of this Ordinance and shall refer 
the minor to juvenile court. 

 
Section 8 All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith, 

are, to the extent of such inconsistency or conflict, hereby repealed. 
 
Section 9 In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence or part of this Ordinance 

or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall for any 
reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair or invalidate this Ordinance as a 
whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be 
invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Humble, 
Texas declared that it would have passed each and every part of the same 
notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 

 
Section 10 It is the intention of the City Council and it is hereby ordained, that the 

provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made part of the Code of 
Ordinances, City of Humble, Texas and the sections of this Ordinance may 
be renumbered to accomplish such intention. 

 
Section 11 The provisions of this Ordinance shall take effect from the adopting date by 

the City Council, and ten (10) days after the publication of the caption of 



 6 

said Ordinance as the law in such cases provides, and it is accordingly so 
ordained. 

 
INTRODUCED and CONSIDERED in an open meeting of the City Council of the City of Humble 

on the 11th day of August, 2016. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 11th day of August 2016. 

 
        
 
              
       Merle Aaron  
       Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Jason Stuebe 
City Secretary 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION OF PUBLICATION: 
 
I, Jason Stuebe, as the City Secretary of the City of Humble do hereby certify in the performance 
of my office that the above Ordinance was published in the official newspaper of the City of 
Humble on:              
 
 
 
              
       Jason Stuebe 
       City Secretary 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-28-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #4   

 

RESOLUTION 16-768 

BUILDING AND PERMIT FEES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CITY OF HUMBLE 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-765 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, ADOPTING A SCHEDULE OF 
FEES AND CHARGES APPLICABLE TO REGULARTORY INSPECTIONS, 

PERMITTING, APPLICATIONS, AND OTHER MATTERS. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE TEXAS: 
 
Section 1:  That certain “Schedule of Fees and Charges,” a true and correct copy of which is 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and for all things is made a part of this Resolution, 
is hereby in all things adopted.  The fees set forth in said “Exhibit “A” shall be 
applicable beginning on October 1, 2016.  

 
Section 2: That all resolutions or parts of resolutions inconsistent or in conflict herewith to the 

extent of such inconsistency or conflict, are hereby repealed.   
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this the 28th day of July 2016. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
            
      Merle Aaron 
      Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Jason Stuebe 
City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

CITY OF HUMBLE 
BUILDING AND PERMITS DEPARTMENT 

SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES 
 
All Contractor Licenses:  $100.00 
All Contractor Renewals:  $50.00 
 
Subdivision, Final, Development 
Short Form Plat Applications:  $25.00 plus $400.00 Review 
 
Building Permit:   $10.00 up to $1,000.00 
    $10.00 plus $5.00 per $1,000.00 up to $50,000.00 
    $250.00 plus $4.00 per $1,000.00 up to $100,000.00 
    $400.00 plus $3.00 per $1,000.00 up to $500,000.00 
    $1,600.00 plus $2.00 per $1,000.00 greater than $500,000.00 
 
Electrical Permit:   $50.00 plus $1.00 per $1,000.00 
 
Plumbing Permit:   $50.00 plus $1.00 per $1,000.00 
 
HVAC/Mechanical/Refrigeration 
Installation or Repair:   $50.00 plus $1.00 per $1,000.00 
  
Home Owner Exemption Permit: $50.00 
 
Plan Review Fee:   ½ Permit Cost 
 
Irrigation Permit:   $25.00 Residential 
    $50.00 Commercial 
 
Excavation/Grading:   $2.00 per $1,000.00 
 
Demolition Permit:   $50.00 up to 100,000 Cubic Feet 
    $0.50 per additional 1,000 Cubic Feet 
 
Structure Moving Permit:  $50.00 
 
Fire Sprinkler Permit:   $50.00 Multifamily and Commercial 
 
Fire Alarm Permit:   $50.00 Multifamily and Commercial 
 
Commercial Fire  
Suppression Permit:   $50.00 
 
Burglar Alarm Permit:   $25.00 Residential 
    $50.00 Commercial 
 
Sign Permit:    $50.00 under $1,000.00 
    $100.00 over $1,000.00 



Tent Permit:    $50.00 
 
Parade Permit:    $25.00 
 
Precious Metals Permit:   $100.00 
 
Game Room Permit:   $30.00 plus $15.00 per Machine 
 
Towing Permit:    $150.00 per Vehicle Tag 
 
Towing Operator License:  $50.00 per Driver 
 
Taxicab Permit:    $100.00 
 
Taxicab Operator License:  $50.00 per Driver 
 
Transient Retail Business License: $50.00 
 
Junk Dealer License Fee:  $50.00 
 
Re-Inspection Fee:   $50.00 first re-inspection 
    $75.00 second re-inspection 
    $100.00 all subsequent re-inspections 
 
Home Owner Exemption  
Non-Compliance Penalty:  $100.00 
 
Performing Work without   Violation of Sections 105.1 and 114 IBC, May be cited as a 
Building, Plumbing, Electrical,   Misdemeanor punishable by  up to $2,000.00 for life safety 
Mechanical Permit Penalty:  violations or $500.00 for all other violations as  prescribed in 
    §1.11 of Code of Ordinances.  Each day shall constitute a  

   separate offense 
.   
Performing Work without   Violation of Sections 105.1 and 109 IFC, May be cited as a  
Fore Sprinkler, Fire Alarm,  Misdemeanor punishable by up to $2,000.00 for life safety 
Commercial Suppression  violations or $500.00 for all other violations as prescribed 
Permit Penalty:    in §1.11 of code of Ordinances.  Each day shall constitute a  
    separate offense. 
     
 
Failure to Obtain Certificate   Violation of Sections 111.1 and 114 IBC, Misdemeanor  
of Occupancy:    punishable by up to $2,000.00 for life safety violations or   

   $500.00 for all other violations as prescribed in §1.11 of Code of 
   Ordinances.  Each day shall constitute a separate offense. 

 
Performing Work without  
A Permit Not Governed by the 
IBC or IFC:    Double Permit Fee. 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-28-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #5   

 

DEVELOPMENT PLAT 

MAIN EVENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-28-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #6 

 

DEVELOPMENT PLAT 

INTERCONTINENTAL COMMERCE PARK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



’
’

A DEVELOPMENT PLAT OF

INTERCONTINENTAL
COMMERCE PARK



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-28-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #7 

 

SHORT FORM PLAT 

 

SRG-HUMBLE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 




































 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-28-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #8 

 

ENGINEER’S PROPOSAL 

 

RANKIN ROAD OUTFALL 

CIVIC CENTER DETENTION POND 

SOUTHWEST WASTEWATER TREATMENT 

PLANT 

 



 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040  •  Houston, TX 77074  • (713)-400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com •  TX PE Firm No. 13872 

 

 
 

ATTACHMENT “A” 
 
 
July 25, 2016 
 
Mr. Barry K. Brock 
Director of Public Works 
City of Humble 
102 Granberry 
Humble, Texas 77338 
 
Re: Proposal for Engineering Services for the Rankin Road Outfall and Detention Pond 

Imprvement Project. 
 
Dear Mr. Brock: 
 
ARKK Engineers, LLC (ARKK) is pleased to submit this proposal for performing engineering 
services for the above referenced projects.  This proposal is based on our understanding of the 
project as per our previous meetings and conversations. These projects include replacing the Rankin 
Road north roadside ditch outfalls into Garner’s Bayou, improvements to the detention pond at the 
Civic Center, and improvements to the detention pond at the Southwest Wastewater Treatment Plant.  
 
The Rankin Road outfall improvement project will replace the two roadside ditch outfalls on the 
north side of Rankin Road.  The existing pipes are corrugated metal pipe which have rusted thru and 
are causing sinkholes along the road at the bridge.  Garner’s Bayou is a Harris County Flood Control 
District (HCFCD) maintained stream, therefor, this project will require HCFCD approval and will be 
designed according to the Harris County Flood Control District requirements. 
 
The detention pond improvement project involves two (2) existing ponds.  The first will consist of 
converting the detention pond at the Civic Center to a wet bottom pond, and repairing the eroded 
pond banks.  The detention pond at the Civic Center makes water from the bottom of the pond which 
keeps the bottom to wet to adequately maintain.  It is proposed to convert this detention pond into a 
wet pond which will always have water in it and eliminates the need to mow the bottom of the pond. 
The second detention pond is located at the City’s SWWTP, and is experiencing erosion on the west 
slope due to the water standing on the property to the west of the pond.  It is proposed to install 
backslope interceptor swales and pipes that would drain into the detention pond, and to reshape and 
reestablish the eroded west side pond bank.       

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
A. Design Phase Basic Services  
 

• Research and gather existing data on the project such as existing utility information 
and As-Built drawings on the existing facilities. 



 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040  •  Houston, TX 77074  • (713)-400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com •  TX PE Firm No. 13872 

 

 
• Plot survey data of the proposed Rankin storm sewer outfall alignment and evaluate 

potential alignment alternatives. 
 

• Examine geotechnical information to determine potential soil conditions and 
potential impact on construction methodology and costs. 

 
• Compile and review other existing information such as environmental assessments, 

right-of-way, easements, and traffic control requirements  
 

• Provide estimated construction costs. 
 

• Coordinate with the City of Humble and apprise the City of ARKK’s findings and 
analysis, and obtain input from the City. 

 
• Meet with the City at the 30% design completion phase.  At the 30%  design meeting, 

the following Items will be discussed: 
• Construction Cost Estimates. 
• Items which will affect the project cost and time during construction. 
• Information and coordination with other governmental and utility 

agencies, and data on any required permitting. 
 

• Prepare final engineering design drawings and specifications as two separate projects, 
one for the Rankin Road outfall repair and one for the detention pond improvements 
portion of the project. 

 
• Prepare final cost estimate for the project. 

 
• Complete coordination with other governmental entities or utility agencies in regard 

to the project.  Assist the City in obtaining and/or securing approvals required by all 
governmental authorities with jurisdiction over the design and/or the operation of the 
project and all public and private utilities including pipeline transmission companies 
affected by this project.  This assistance will involve the usual expected coordination 
and approval process.  When the process involves work beyond the expected, such 
as; special submittals, designs, appearances at special meetings, coordination of 
utility/pipeline excavation efforts, permitting applications, etc., such work would be 
considered under the Additional Services portion of this proposal. 
 

• Coordinate with the City of Humble during the final design process and provide draft 
documents for the City to review and comment upon.  Incorporate appropriate 
comments with the final bid documents. 

 
• Furnish three (3) sets of construction documents to the City.  

 
 



 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040  •  Houston, TX 77074  • (713)-400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com •  TX PE Firm No. 13872 

 

B. Special Design Phase Services for the Project 
 

 Surveying Services 
 

• Obtain topographical survey for the right-of-way in the Rankin Road outfall project 
area.  The survey shall locate right-of-way iron rods and property corners at periodic 
locations to aid in locating the right-of-way.  A CAD file showing the apparent right-
of way line on the topographical survey will be provided based on the located right-
of-way iron rods. Perform “measure downs” and provide vertical elevation 
information on the existing sanitary sewer, and other utilities in the project area. 
 

• Topographic surveying will be performed on the two detention pond sites to the 
detail necessary for the design of the proposed pond improvements.     

 
• This scope does not include survey services associated with easement documents or 

acquiring right of way. 
 

 Geotechnical Investigation Services  
 

• Field Exploration: 2 borings are anticipated to drilled to a combined depth of 40 feet 
at the Civic Center Detention Pond to evaluate subsurface conditions.   

 
• Laboratory Testing - Soil mechanics laboratory testing will be performed to measure 

physical and engineering properties of selected representative soil samples. 
 

• Geotechnical Report - The geotechnical report will provide recommendations and 
construction criteria for the project area. 

 
• Traffic Control & Sequencing   

  
• Prepare traffic control plans and construction sequencing and roadway marking   

plans for the Rankin Road outfall improvements.  
 

C. Construction Phase Services 
 

• This phase will be entered into after the acceptance of the final engineering design 
drawings and documents by the City of Humble. 

 
• Assist the City in obtaining bids for the project.  The City of Humble will advertise 

the projects and will absorb all related advertising costs.  ARKK will coordinate with 
the City and will assist in developing the wording of the advertisement.  

 
• ARKK will dispense bid documents to potential bidders and suppliers, using the 

Civcast online plan room service operated by Amtek USA.  This will help to increase 
interest in the project from potential bidders and allow them to download the contract 
documents remotely.  



 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040  •  Houston, TX 77074  • (713)-400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com •  TX PE Firm No. 13872 

 

 
• During the bidding process, provide information to and answer questions from 

potential bidders concerning the Project’s construction documents and prepare 
addendums as necessary. 

 
• Evaluate the bids and the qualifications of the apparent low bidders and advise the 

City as to the acceptability of the apparent low bidder. 
 

• Act as the City’s Project Representative during the construction phase. 
 

• Review and respond accordingly to all submittals as required by the contract 
specifications. 

 
• Prepare change orders necessitated by field conditions. 

 
• Review the contractor’s pay estimates, evaluate the completion of work, and make 

payment recommendations to the City. 
 

• Visit the site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction to observe 
the progress and quality of executed work and to determine in general if such work is 
proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents.  Full time site representation 
is not included as part of this proposal.  

 
• ARKK will not be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences or 

procedures of construction selected by the Contractor(s) or the safety precautions and 
programs incident to the work of the Contractor(s).  ARKK's effort will be directed 
toward providing a greater degree of confidence for the City of Humble that the 
completed work of Contractor(s) will conform to the Contract Documents, but 
ARKK will not be responsible for the failure of Contractor(s) to perform the work in 
accordance with the Contract Documents.  During site visits ARKK shall keep the 
City informed of the progress of the work, shall endeavor to guard the City against 
defects and deficiencies in such work and may disapprove or reject work failing to 
conform to the Contract Documents. 

 
• Conduct a final review of the Project and make a recommendation for Final Payment 

on the Project. 
 

• Engineer shall provide one set of reproducible record plans based on the drawings 
provided to the Engineer by the Contractor(s). 

 

D. Additional Services 
  

Additional services are those services that are beyond the services provided for in the scope 
portion of this proposal. 

 
Additional services may be required and may be identified as the project progresses.   Such 



 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040  •  Houston, TX 77074  • (713)-400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com •  TX PE Firm No. 13872 

 

services are to be performed only when authorized by the City.  Potential Additional services 
include: 

 
1. Right-of-way research, deed research, and abstracting. 

 
2. Site Easement and Right of Way Acquisition work such as: preparation of metes and 

bounds; verification of ownership of property; preparation and submittal of title 
report or title commitment. 

 
3. Environmental Site Assessments. 

 
4. Extra Construction Phase Services in the event the project extends beyond its 

designated contract period.  
 

5. Securing any special licenses, permits or approvals (railroad crossings, State permits 
or approvals, pipelines, etc.) which may be required for the completion of the project, 
it being understood by the parties of this agreement that the fees for said special 
licenses and permits will be paid by the City. 

 
6. The provision of a construction site representative and associated supervision and 

administration services. 
 

7. Coordination with utility pipeline field location efforts and special meetings with 
pipeline companies. 

 



 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040  •  Houston, TX 77074  • (713)-400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com •  TX PE Firm No. 13872 

 

FEE   
 
The fee is separated into Design Phase and Construction Phase: 
 

Design Phase Services 
Basic Services Fees are: 
   Rankin Road Channel Outfall Design: the lump sum of:  $19,200.00 
   Detention Pond Improvement Design the lump sum of:  $24,000.00 
 
Special Services Fees are: 
   Topographic Surveying (Cost plus 10%)* $8,500.00 
   Geotechnical (Cost plus 10%)* $5,500.00 
   Traffic Control Plan: The lump sum amount of $1,500.00 
   Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan: The lump sum amount of $1,000.00 
   Reproduction: (Cost plus 10%)* $1,000.00 
   HCFCD permitting and coordination: (Lump Sum) $2,000.00 

Total Design Phase Amount:   $62,700.00 
 
Construction Phase Services 
   Construction Administration: (Hourly and cost plus 10%) $ 6,250.00 
   Construction Site Visits: (Hourly and cost plus 10%) $ 6,250.00 

Total Construction Phase Amount: $12,500.00 
 
*At this time the magnitude of these tasks are not known.  Therefore budgetary amounts are provided.  These 

figures may increase or decrease depending upon actual work required.  If an increase becomes necessary it 

can be accomplished by utilizing available funds from other line items that have under run, or by contract 

amendment. 

 
ARKK will submit monthly progress invoices for all work completed to invoice date.  The total 

contract authorization amount is not-to-exceed $75,200.00. 
 
Time and materials charges and additional services beyond those described in the Scope of Services 
will be invoiced on the basis of direct labor costs times a factor of 2.99 and direct cost plus 10%.  
Mileage will be charged at $0.55 per mile.  No additional services will be performed or invoiced 
without prior authorization form the City of Humble. 
 
ARKK appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal and we look forward to continuing our 
work with the City of Humble. 
 
Sincerely, 
ARKK ENGINEERS, LLC. 
 
 
 
John D. Rudloff, P.E. 
Principal/Senior Project Manager 



THE STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF HARRIS 
 AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

This Agreement entered into as of the                 day of                                   ,A.D., 2016, 

by and between ARKK Engineers, LLC., hereinafter referred to as the "Consultant", and the City of 

Humble, Texas, hereinafter referred to as the "Client". 

 WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Client has requested various services of the Consultant with respect to 

Engineering Services associated with the Rankin Road Outfall and Detention Pond Improvements 

Project. (hereinafter referred to as the Project). 

NOW, THEREFORE, Client and Consultant hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. Engagement of Consultant - Consultant hereby agrees to perform the services 

required under the scope of work related to the Project, and to provide Client with copies of the 

information, opinions, and other such documents made the basis of the scope of services, which is set out 

in Attachment "A" and made a part of this contract.  Consultant agrees to initiate services that are set out 

in Attachment “A” upon receipt of an executed copy of this Agreement. 

2. Availability of Information - Client agrees to provide Consultant with all available 

information pertinent to the Project.  Client will also provide copies of reports, drawings and other data, 

and will, at Consultant's request, provide written authorization to review Client's files relative to the 

Project which may be in possession of third parties.  Consultant agrees to return all original documents 

to Client upon completion of the Project, but reserves the right to make and keep reproducible copies of 

all such material. 



3. Access to Facilities - Client will provide access for the Consultant to enter the 

property and facilities of Client, as necessary for Consultant to perform services as required under the 

Project. 

4. Instruments of Service - All documents prepared in accordance with this contract 

including exhibits, field notes, laboratory data, original drawings, and specifications are the property of 

the Client.  The Consultant is given the right to use any of this data in connection with future engineering 

projects.  The Consultant may retain copies of reproducibles of any information prepared for this Project. 

5. Fee - The Consultant's fee for the scope of services as stated in Attachment "A" 

provided by Consultant under this Agreement as set out in Attachment "A". 

6. Payment and Fee Schedule - The Consultant will submit a monthly invoice for 

services rendered.   

7. Terms of Payment - Payment of fees as determined under Paragraph 5 herein 

above shall be due and payable by Client within thirty (30) days following receipt of Consultant's monthly 

invoice. 

8. Additional Services - Additional services beyond those described in the Scope of 

Services will be invoiced on the basis of direct labor cost times a factor of 2.99 and direct cost plus 10%. 

9. Termination - The Client may terminate this contract at any time by giving notice 

in writing to the Consultant.  In that case, all finished or unfinished documents and other materials 

produced under this contract, shall become the Client's property.  If the contract is terminated by the 

Client in accordance with this provision, Consultant shall be paid for all work performed to the date of 

termination. 



10. Governing Law - This Agreement shall be deemed to have been made 

under, and shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas.  

The venue of any suit for enforcement or construction of this contract shall be in Harris County, 

Texas. 

ENTERED INTO AND AGREED by the parties hereto as the day and year first 
written. 
 

ARKK ENGINEERS, LLC. 
Consultant 
 

 
  
       ______________________________ 

     BY: John D. Rudloff, P.E. 
     Principal 

 
 

CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS 
     Client 

 
 

 
 ____________________________ 
BY: Darrell Boeske 

     City Manager of Humble, Texas 
 
 
 
 
                                              
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  


	Item 5 - Main Event Development Plat.pdf
	Main Event Humble - 52874 - 22JUL2016REV
	Development Plat (2 of 2)




